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JUDGE HENRY: Just as a preliminary
matter, I want to try and thank you, and I will
1

talk_slow too.

I want to thank Judge Wachowski for

.coining here today. I appreciété-tha; very much,

:because the gift of your time iéra very valuable
;h}ng.

| And I also wané-gb thank your
f;;ends that came here. And if T invited all of

your friends, we couldn’t hold it here. We would

Ahave to get the United Center. We couldn’t get

it because it is busy with the Chlcago Bulls.

But my purpose of trying to get

- this project with the Cook County Court System

of f the ground is to tYy to prov1de gome type of
perspective on all of the wonderful things and
all of the wonderful people that have been
involved in the court system over the years and’
to try and give a fair and even view of the
characters and the people that have participated
in the administration of justice in Cook Cquﬂty.

Some of the stories are funny, SOWe
of them are tragic, but there ig not too many

places where they have been recorded. So that’s
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the buﬁpbse of this project, which hopefuily will
go forward on-four different levels.

| One aspect would be an anecdotel
hlstory of durlng various times durlng the

history of the-circuit court where there wefe,d

"major events that shaped the history of the 01ty

and those events if they had to have played out

- _'in the court: system.

“Now, Judge Jim Murray who is a

historian by all vocations, ig a greatéﬁﬁStice of .

the IlllﬂOlS Appellate Court and is working on

that aspect. of it with me . And that will
hopefully be gomething that the Chicago Bar
Association will Dbe lnterested in., Which I have
spoken with Terry Murphy, the executive dlrector,
he thinks that the Chicago Bar Association weuld
be interested in publishing. |

i The second aepect of the projeet
would be to look at the architectural history of
the Circuit Court of Cook County. I have an
architect teaching historian who has volunteered
to do that. And I will say more about that at

some other time. But that too igs a part of the

tradicion, the aura and the dignity of the court
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gystem.

The vefy building that we sit in
has a rich political hJStory on how it even came
about. I was told at one timé,that it came about
when at one time, itasﬁbqequently became
Appellate Court Judge ﬁcGloon, decided that,
well, I will go along w1th the Public Building
Commission legislation that will authorize 1t,
but I want one of those W1ndow seats in the
Appellate Court And he became an Appellate
Court judge{ and the bulldlng in which we git was
construqted..

But there are many stories like

.that -- some of them true, SOmMe of them not true.

But like many dgreat gstories, somé'of them
happened. h

and the third part that will take
place is an oral history program. And today is
the first interview of a judge, which will
hopefully be the first of many that will
chronicle the life stories of thé judges Who.have
made up a significant part of the higtory of the
circuit Court of Cook County.

Father Tom Croak, C-r-o-a-k --
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‘that’s a good Irish name, he tells me -- is the

chalrman of the history department of DePaul

Unlver31ty. He apologizes profusely He called

me three times in the last half hour to tell me

“that he could not make it becauséﬂthreeaof the

staff members who staff his office at.DePaul are

S ill with the flu. He is not only running the

department, he is also answetinéfeil of 'the
phones and taking care ot other administrative
dutles He is very sorry that “he is not here.

He wants very much to be a part of this progect
and he wants to use of some of his students that
are seeking masters’ degrees in hlstory at
University of DePaul from undertaking a lot of

the background 1nvest1gat10n and do the

interviews with future judges. SO that’s

. pagically three avenues.

And'the fourth has to. do with the

involvement with the Chicago Historical Society

~of putting on at the turn of the century a

retrospective of the history of the court syetem
in Illinois and as it applies to Cook County.
So that’s basically in a nutshell

what this is all about.
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- Judge Murray told the story,:Which

I think would be Jjust a fitting story to get
astarted here, and that would be the story about{
Emmet Morrissey. and I will let Justice Murray
tell it in hlé gwn- words . And that will be the ' .
first story Whlch w1ll make up the history of the?
Circuit Court of Cook County, but I think that it
jg.a fun one. - | |

o And then after he tells that story,

what we are going to do, Judge, and I xnow “that

you asked me to send you some guestions, which T

did, I am not goiﬁg to ask for great detail or

anything else, but what I want td do-is I will
ask you some guestions. And I want to start w1th
your childhood, your memories of Chicago and what
it was like at the time. And then we will move
through your early business career, your decigidﬁ
to go to law échool, your eariy years practicing
1aw. Anything that comes up and takes us on a
1ittle tangent is fine.

I think that your friends who are

here -- Judge Staniec and Judge McElligott --

‘will be happy to pitch in.

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: We will keep him
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honest.

JUDGE HENRY: That’s what I was going to
say. dJudge McElligott sayé that he will keep you
honest.

They may givé'you.a view about

something that you knew about, but he may have a |

different view.
1f anybody wantsito jump in at any

time and ask Judge Wachowskl a questlon, please

feel free. There is no format to thlS other than

to let Judge Wachowskl to glve us the benefit of
his reflections and memories on the life of
service to the ﬁeople’of Cook County and
certainly the circuit court

and one of which I am véry proud
of, becaﬁse when I was first year in law
gchool -- I am not prbud\of myself, I am proud of
Judge Wachowski -- 1 was assigned as a pailiff to
his courtroom as a deputy sheriff when he was the
presiding judge of the First Municipal District.
And I saw how he dealt with people that I would
say were somewhat down on their luck.

Judge Po?hton was also your

administrative assistant at the time. He is
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11v1ng in Michigan right now. He'was'going to
try apd make it today. 1 didn’t know if his
schedﬁle would allow. He was certainlyfgoing to
try QO make some arrangements to come down. He
certaiﬂiy“wanted to be here. He may{bé'here at
somé{fﬁture date. o

7 So everybody-pitch in. There is no
agenda:here other than the thoniclé, what all of
you think ig important, questions that you?might
have foxr Judge Wachowski that you thlnk would be
of 1nterest to you or that you think that would
be ofigeneral interest to anybody 1nterested in
the history of the Circuit Court of Cook County

and the court system prior to the unification of

e

the courts is fair game.
But Justice Murray will you just

tell us your story to get this started?

= JUDGE MURRAY: Judge, you remember the
days before the consoiidated couft system when we
had a Municipal Court in the City of Chicago and
che Circuit Court, the municipal judges got a
1ittle less money that the Circuit Court judges.

aAnd one day Emmet Morrissey who was

a Municipal Court judge was elevated to a full
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Circuit Couftljudge. And they had a party. The
judges had a party, and their wives were there.
And Judge Hermes ;— Joe Hermes' wife had a little
too much to drink. So éhe went up to Emme £

Morrisgsey. And’shéjsaid to Emmet{ "How-come an

ass hole like you is elevated to the full Circuit

Court and my husband Joe ig still in the

- Municipal Court?" And Morrissey says, "Well,

maybe -they dldn t want two ass holes.on the bench

in the Cerult Court at the game time. | gt
(Laughter)
JUDGE WAQﬁOWé%I: Yeah, I remember this.
JUDGE HENRY: And you don’t-have to
comment on either one of thir personalities.
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: i was there at the
party, and I kndw?whether - |
JUDGE MURRAY: Was that true?
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yes. That’'s truthful.
JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: I wasn’'t at the
party. | ' |
JUDGE HENRY: Well, there you have it.
JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: I am asking you, are
you under oath?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: There was & lot of



10
il
12
713
14
15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

tension there at “that pafty.-

JUDGE HENRY: And when would that have
been, Judge? Late '5087? {

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: Morrissey went on the
Municipal Court in 1948. ) ;'}
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: I think it was before

the "blue pallot" and before the constitutional

- amendment.

| JUDGE MURRAY: And Judge Hermes was a
pietty good judge, I heé;fj " |
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Hermes was a good

judge: and the qpurté he sat in;‘ h

| Although he did some bizarre
things, the lawyers all liked to go before him
because he ruled fast. and this is whaﬁm
practicing lawyers 1ike. They don‘t like to fu;s
around with briefs and guch.things.

and Hermes, it was reputed that he

knew the law. And he was sitting in the motion
court in the First Municipai District or rather
the Municipal Court of Chicago and later on,in
the First Municipal District. He was still
there.

Tncidentally -- Well, that’s

10
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anether'avenue we will get into. The districte
were created after the passage of Louie V, the
onstltutlon. And I was the chairman of the
commlttee that created these dlstrlcts
‘ Joe Bower was w1th me in the court
SclplT 27
and a guy by the name of Sholwsxum, Blue Island
was the other court judge.
JUDGE MURRAY: Is Schultz a ]udge out in
Blue Island, in the old city codrt? Wasn’t he a
judge out there° | R
JUDQE WACHOWSKI : Schultz?
.JUDGE MURRAY: Yeah. |
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: feah. Yeah, T eaid
that. L
JUDGE MURRAY: When they had the eld
city court.
JUDGE HENRY: When you s8ay --
" JUDGE MURRAY: ;It was kind of divorce
court out there, wasn’'t ic?
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Did you say ndivorce"?
JUDGE MURRAY: Divorce, yeah. You used
to be able to get a guick divorce out there.

JUDGE MURPHY: Hi, gentlemen. Nice to

gee you, Sir.

11
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. JUDGE BARTH: Nice to see you, Mike.

JUDGE MUR?HYf Nice to see you. too.
Didn't mean to interfupt you, Judge.

JUDGE BARTH: Judge Michael Murphy is
here. Put him on éhé'ﬁecord. f

Just tﬁrdw itlon the couch,
anywhere,'(indicapiqg coat) . |

| 'JﬁDGE HENRY: =Juage, let me go béck to a
few weeks,.a fewﬁmonths.égo ybu and I and J;dge
Barth were sittzﬁé down ﬁere, and we were taikingﬁ?ﬁ
about your‘earliest regollecfion of the City of
Chicago. And you told uéjébout how you grew up
on the south -- the near gouthwest side: Lawndale
area, and this was a farm in the area, so on and‘
so forth.

So could you tell me your date of
birth and your earliest recollection of the City
of Chicago as a young boy? :

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Well, I-- my date of
pirth was August 15th, 1901. In fact, & couple
of months from today I will be 95. |

| JUDGE HENRY: That’s great. That’s the
same birthday as my dad by the way.

vou know, it 1is also a holy day?

iz2
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i
in Chicagg, or were they both/amiggants?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Tt is a day of
obligation. |

JUDGE HENRY:. That's riéht. Did that
come about in your hopor? |

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: I used to think so

" until -- I say this in jest.

JUDGE HENRY: At least that’s what your

mother told you anywax; - o
; ~ JUDGE WACHOWSKI: I didn’t realize that
it @asra religious holiday,%%ﬂat evef&body went

to church on that day. I thought it was because

;it was my birthday.

JUDGE HEﬂRY: Were your mom and dad born
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: They were/g%igr;££s.
JUDGE HENRY: Were they both from
Poland.
JUDGE ﬁACHOWSKI: They were both from_
Poland, the Poland which was under the
jurisdiction of Germany at that time,

JUDGE HENRY: And what did your dad do

~at that time when he came to Chicago? What was

hig vocation or profession at that time?

JUDCE WACHOWSKI: He came over here as a

13
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cabinet maker. I never got into. that. ‘T don't
know what tqatfmeans. 1 don't know 1if he built

. I
cabinets or whatever he did. But he got into --

He got some employment as a grocery salesman.

JUDGE HENRY: Did he meet your mom- here

or did --

- JUDGE WACHOWSKI: I guess he met her
over here. -

JUDGE HENRY And how-many brothers and -

gisters dld you 1r1.3w—e::a‘p

JUDGE WACHOWSKI Well, I had three
prothers and: four gisters. '

JUDGE HENRY: And you all grew up on the
southwest side of Chigﬁgo?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Ye&s.

JUDGE HENRY: So the firsﬁ house_thag
you remember living in, where would that have
been locatéﬁ, approximatelyﬁ 1f you know the
address, that’s great, O just the general area.

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yeah. I believe it
used to be known as the 2002 West 22nd Street.
it later got to be 3032 -- 3032 on Cermak Road.

JUDGE MURRAY: What ward was that on?

JUDGE WACHOWSKL: 22nd.

14
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Mayof Cermak was --
JUDGE MURRAY: He was the committee man?
|

JUDGE WACHOWSKIE He was the ward
committee man. He was the aldérman there later.

JUDGE MURRAY;7'Thatis how the Criminai
Court got sitluated out there, wasn't it?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: He managed to get it
out there. He thought that itrwas going to be a

great development in the praperty value, which it
was not. There we%§3iawsuité'at'that time -
because of the type of persons fhat were coming
out-to the.diétrict. | a

JUDGE HENRY: Were your mom OI youf dad
4involved in politics when.you were young?

. JUDGE WACHOWSKI: No, not-too mugh. I
think my dad -- I don’t.know what he was before
1893. I think he came in about ‘87. And he was
republican. |

JUDGE HENRY: He was a republican?
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: He became a republican
in 1893 when Cleveland was the president and

there was a big, big depression. Not as big as

the ‘29, ‘30 and ’'31. But there was a big

depréssion, I guess. They blamed it on the

15
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democratlc party at that time.

JUDGE HENRY: And would there have been

f

an election in 1894 for president?

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: '92. That was

o AQRAT
Cleveland. Cleveland and irst; -in 'g2.

That’s the man that yoﬁ have to got

,,to look to for the political statlstlcs

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: "That was the date that

- he got for the polltlcal dlStrlCtS

| JUDGE HENRY: How about 18967 Who was
the pre51dent1al candidate in 18967 Was thét
Williams Jennings Bryanﬁ7 -

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: Williams Jennings
Bryan@. e

JUDGE HENRY,: And he was a democrat?ﬁh

JUDGE MCELLIGQTT: Yeah. .

JUDGE ﬁENRY: Okay. So would your dad
nave supportéd Wiliiam Jennings Bryany or the
republican nominee?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: No, he would have
voted for the republican nominee. |

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: That was McKinley and

Roosevelt. Teddy Roosevelt.

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Teddy Roosevelt.

16
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1ittle bit.

| JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: For vice-pfesident.
JQDGE HENRY: We can get off on- -
presidential politics, and we won’'t get past
1900. scjwe are going to have to move up a
So what is your eatrliest memories

of the City of Chicago as a young boy?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Well, I don’t know.

‘Playigg around with the kids in the baseball -

in the -- We had.no @arks.

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: School yards.

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: We had a little yard “
or a vacant piece of property. We played |
baseball on the vacant property. And -- |

JUDGE HENRY: Were you a White Sox fan
or a Cubs fan?

' JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Well, I was a Cubs fan
from the start. _

They were located, you know, on
where County Hospital now is. And I was a Cubs
fan. And we used to go over there and try to
sneak in.

{(Laughter)

JUDGE HENRY: Did you succeed?

17
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JUDGE WACHOWSKI: I don’t think so.

JUDGE HENRY:

Okay .

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: And we had to go.
through territory that;was very dangerous. SO
there was Irish and derﬁéné'west of Marshall
Bouievard.'ﬁAnd we were - or east df Marshall
Boulevard. _

We had to walk through their
territof?Itdrget;£Q§re. .Aﬁd the little gangs -
were éround there. You might get punched up
there a little bit. So thagjs'why we had to run
to get through.

JUDGE MURRAY: What high school did you

5%go to? - s
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: I started out-at
Farragut High School. 'And it was -- that was in
about 1900 and -- it must have been 12, no, 13.

Then they built Harrisén High School. And they
built Farragut over there.

JUDGE HENRY: And then -- I am not
going to brush over this early part of your life,
but'I do Waht to know about, tell me where you
met your wife, how you met her.

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: Don't you want to get

18
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into his army career'in World War I?

[ | Tell him about youf qrmy career in
World War I.

. JUDGE WACHOWSKI: I thogggt I could keep
thig Lnder cover. o

JUDGE HENRY: Well, that’'s why he came.

" ‘He is,going to keep you honest. . That’'s why he is

hefew 3
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Thé;}would.be being
honest, just not said. |
(Laughter) .
" Well, I always say now, in all
fairneés, that my'-— I must have been a real task
for my paréﬁts. I did, I joined the army at -15.
I wasg in the -- in ‘there four months. And then
m; brother, who was in the same 22nd company,
they were down in -- chasing --
JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: Mexico?
JUDGE WACHOWSKT: -- Mexicans.
What was his name?

Phdcno JILLA
JUDGE BARTH: Penicho Via? -
Vie A

Pl o
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: |
He was in the same company that 1

was placed into. And he informed them that I was

19
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not of the proper age.

S0 they gave me a cap and told me,
"Three minutes. You shouldn’t have done it,

buddy. You are patriotic. And for .that, wéiwill

1

give you an honorable discharge." Which I have.
; . And, well then after that, I was

kind of rocky; Because I would used to walk.. .

"~ around with a Uhiped States’ government suit, and

thenh all..of a sudden I didn’'t have it. .SQSgking
it on.

So I-took the application -- I

‘made an application to get on the, what they call

the helping, providing the food. And I still had
a job to do, sending feIlows out to the farm to
get food. So I used to get together with two
other fellows{hwent out to a place in Wisconsin *
here, and Wé Worked at a farm.all summer.

Thaﬁ's interesting. I had lost
track of these two fellows that were with us.
One I never did see agéin. It picks up. But the
other one, I was trying to -- I was presidiﬁg in
a case, and there was a jury gding through. The
lawyers were interrogating. And a name sounded

real familiar. I looked over. And so I had him

20
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brought iﬁté chambers..l"Are you so and so?ﬁ‘“He
said, "Yeah." He says, "You remember me?" I
said, "Yeah, you are kind‘of familiar. Were you
ever on the farm?" “YeaQuﬁ He was in the
grocery business; f

JUDGE HENRY: And that would have been
1919 oxr 19207

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Oh, no, that was much'

"later. I was alreadx;a-judge, and T was elected

© judge.
| JUDGE. MCELLIGOTT: This fellow on the
farm --
JUDGE MURRAY: When was that, when were
yaﬁ on the farm, 1919? g o

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: In 1918. This was to
help the war effort. |

JUDGE MURRAY: \Wgre you a lawyer .at the
time or not?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: No.

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: He was only 17 then,
Jim.

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: No, that was another
disastrous thing for me. I came here, and then I

went to work for the National Maldbzl. I almost
MoK LEABLE

21
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got killed there.

! I was the head of a job;onfa truck

bringing the workers who were putting'together

a -~ what would you call it -- a cast; of the rear

end of an automobile.

And they

wofked on thaE by pouring

-in“this metal that they finally put into the

stove. . And they had it all piled up. Aq@ on

= thig particular day, they were walking. They

were doing work piecemeal. They got paid foxr

every part ﬁhey did.
L And I am
wagon. It happened to
And it didn’t Have the
cart that I would pick
thiﬁé to sway.
\ And-sé I

guy, this thing swayed

cdoming along with this

have a little wave in it.

rod that was pulling the~™

up and that caused the

got by the pile with this

over and caught the

bottom, and down came the whole pile. And the

guy that had worked all day long, he grabbed the

shovel, and he started

jumped out and I run like hell.

out after me. And I

some of the other guys, I might have ended my

career right then and there.

If it wasn't for

22
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JUDGE-HENRY: Before it géf started?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Well, anyway, after
that experience; a little later, I decided to
knock that dff qqd decided to go back to school.
I never got my“hiﬁﬁ school diploma because I

didn’t finish.

But they were giving -- They were -

giving the examinaﬁipns for credits, high school
c;edifs thtgggh examinations £f£rom - from the .
Illinois University. And I applied for those and
was very successful. -

I péssed all the tests they gave
me, except Latin. And in those days, Latin was a
necessary element to the 1éﬁ buginess.

So I took a year’s law while I was
taking these examinations. And I passed the
vear’s law at ﬁe?aul. And when --

(Loud noise.) What the hell is
that?

At any rate, I took that, those
examinations, got my first year of law passed,
got éredit for it. And then the word came out
that I didn’'t get my Latin. I didn’t have all of

itc.
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16 years old.

So I went to summer school, got the
Latin credit in summer school. I was there, a
guy about 21, 22.  All the kids were 13, 14, 15,

JUDGE HENRY: Were you living at home

then?
JUDGE WACHOWSKI:*'Yes.V I was 1iving'at
home. o
And I lost-track again.
JUDGE MURPHY: You were saying the
~credits -- |

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Oh, yes, the credits.

I came back hoping to go into the
secoﬁﬁ"year of law. And at that time there was
a -- there were no preliminaries needed. You
went right into law school. ;f'think it was a
three-year law course. |

So anyway I came in with my
achieved goal. I had all the credits. Now, I
wés now going to go into the second year of law
at DePaul, Grace Sasary.

A new law passed, went into effect
July 1st of this year, in which they provide for

two yvears of pre-law and two years of law, day
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schooi. Night school, thréé years of pie—law and
four yearé of law night school. And that's:what
you haﬁe got to do.

| ; JUDGE MURRAY: What year did';hgt go
into éffécf; Judge? N

| JUDGE WACHOWSKI: 1922.
So there I went, seven years, night

school. | '

o . And fortunafély;Vduriggﬁall that
time, my dad who came here as a cabinet maker |
became a‘grpeery salesman, became a real |
estate -- got interested in savings and loan
agssociations.

| And’When he was working for the
grocery company. It was Henry Horner and
Company, that the guy was a brother of the guy
who létgr became -- \

JUDGE MURRAY: Governor.

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Governor, yeah. Henry
Horner.

And so then he organized the

gavings and léan association. And Henry Horner
who just got out of law school who became

governor of the state and the judge, he was
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ther~;'did -~ he wés my dad’s 1awyer.‘

And‘in gétting that chartexr --

Well,'anyway -- I digress now on
that subject. | o

JUDGE HENRY:T EThat’s okay. Your dad
then staéted a saviﬁgé and loan? ‘

 JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yeah.

-JUDGE HENRY: - What was the name of it?

'JUDGE_WACHOWSKI: Albert Wachowski'
Savings and Loan Company.‘

JUDGE HENRY: = And that was located in
your neighborhood on ‘the southwest side?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: All over. It was
located all over the county and  also in Gary,
Indiana.

He had made friends with all
these -- all these grocers that he was traveling
around selling groce;ies to. And I think when he
was doing that, he would take them off to the
closest bar to have a drink. So he got
acqguainted with a lot of bar keeps or tavern-

owners.

So when he was operating his

‘business and all of these people came in and
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pought a home for 1500, three-flat building, and
ﬁhey paid like 25 bucks a month,;théy didn’t have

to come in to his -- he went out to their place.

. Like Chicago Heights; Blue Island, Harvey, all

‘ﬁhose places, Bridgeport, Brighton Park. All

those places, he wouid go once é month and have
the people come in with their*payments.' They
Qould pay 25 bucks aﬁdltwo percentiipterest_or
twefand~a-hélf perceﬁﬁ. I.forget what it was in
those "days.

JUDGE HENRY:  Would he travel around by

car?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: No. Not at that -- It

“was dead winter. When automobiles came intd

being in about 1916, I think.

JUDGE HENRY: Before that -- How did
he make his calls before that?\ How did he get
aroundé

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Traveled around on
public transportation.

We used to go out to Chicago
Heights. We went to 63rd and Western, there was
a -- that’s where the train stopped. 2And we took

the train and went out there,
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And, incidentally, he always
carried a gané, and it had a big piece of lead in

the end of that cane. Now, that wasn't for the

* purpose -of helping him walk. It 'was for the,

purpose ofadéfehding himself.

and he did have occagion to use it

once. -At-“the- Douglas Park el station. He got .

"off, -and he ﬁag carrying it. He is usually

carrying all this money that he cbllectggi And

this guy in the station came out after him, and

-he give him onefwrép with the cane, knocked him

down the stairs, and the guy ran. So it came’
into good use.
Well, éﬁyway --

JUDGE HENRY: Let meé ask but about your
wife. Whefé did you meet your wife?

\JQDGE WACHOWSKI: .In a dance hall.

JUDGE HENRY: Where at?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: She lived there.
Right about a block away from where I was born.

| JUDGE HENRY: When did you get married?
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: 1927.
JUDGE MURRAY: Were you a lawyer at the

time?
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JUDGE WACHOWSKI: No. In fact, my first
son was at the graduation'éxercises.

JUDGE HENRY: And what church did you
get married: in? | o

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: St. Cashmere’s.

JUDGE HENRY: St. Cashmere’s?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI:. The priest that
married us, "he laterx lefE §he church. I toldvﬁy
wife tha£ wé g0t gﬁgpuple of bastard child}ean
The priest is not legitimate-anymore.

JUDGE HENRY:  And .how many children do

you have?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: I only hadrthree

“ghildren. : o

JUDGE HENRY: Three children. Are any
of them in the law business?
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: No.

I don't kﬁow why. In fact, I am
dealing with that subject with them now, trying
to get some reaction from them as to why.

Well, there are only two living
now. My second son was a West Point graduate and
was in the air force. He was in Vietnam for a

considerable length of time, had about 200
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migsions over in North Vietnam.

o But he was what they called a

forward air control. He would go in on one of

. these small planes and pick up infqrmation as to

where the military were gathering or trénsporting

ﬁaterials.

I said to him one-time, "You travel
on %hat plane. It mékeS?ﬁoise. You bqp't hear
anything. - How do yoéiknbw ifﬁgpgy are,shooting
at you?" - He says, "Well, they make holeé in ﬁhe
wings.®% “0Oh, God." _

JUDGE HENRY:  And what was’ that son’s
name?

' JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Tom. 5 e

JUDGE HENRY: Tom. And what's your
oiﬁer child’s name? Tom was the middle child.

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Giles.

JUDGE HENRY: The oldest,iGiles?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yes.

JUDGE HENRY: And what does Gileg do?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: He is in the compﬁter
business, wérk. He does computér work for the
big insurance firms down here on the south end of

the Loop.
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JUﬁGE HENRY : C.N.A.7?
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yeah. 1
JUDGE HENRY : And what's your youngest
child’'s name?
JUﬁGE‘ﬁAChOWSKI: That’'s my daughter.
JUDGE HENRY:  Your daughter?
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: And --

JUDGE HENRY: And what’s her name?

~JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Doris.w

JUDGE HENRf:u Doris. - And how many
grandchildren do you have?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Well, she only had one
child. My first son had one boy and five girls.
and my second son had oné“girl and five boys.

So --

JUDGEfﬁENRY: That's a big crowd.

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yeah.

JUDGE;MCELLIGOTT: Was he the one that
got killed in the auto accident?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yeah. Tom, after he
came back, he was a colonel in the air force.

And he had 20 years of service then. He had a
job in the computer company in Alexander,

Virginia.
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And one night when he was going to
some religious ceremonies ;hey have in the
church, thére was-a woman 5n the highway with a
flashlight standing near the "Stop" and "Go"
sign. And she was flashing itt So he drove up,
turned around,”énd came béék:behind her, asked

her what was wrong. And she said her battery

-went dead in the car, and shékis afraid that at

the stop sign, éomengy%might_not see her. And

.s0 she iz standing there with the light.

Well, he was a. caxeful guy. He

always had good flares in his car. So he went to

get the flares. And as he is opening up the
trﬁﬁk‘door, somebodyrcame up and putfa gun to
him. It i a foggy night. There is a little
hill there, I guess. And this kid came screaming
over the .top and grashed\right into him, into him
and the car. And that was=the end. Yeah.

JUDGE HENRY: That is a sad story.

Are any of his children or any of
your children -- grandchildren, any of your other
grandchildfen in the law business?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: No. As I said, I am

trying to find out if I can, why.
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JUDGE HENRY: Are any of them in the
savings and loan business? |

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: No. Well, I didn't

'direct them that way because my - I had a

brothe; who was a -- ﬁho had a son. Anditﬂey
weré-mﬁre interested in thé later yeafé.r And I
didn’t want any friction in that department, so I
didn’t encourage them to get:into that.
_JUDGE HENRY : JJusErup to this point, we
are up to‘about 1930 or so. -You graduated frqm
law school in 1930? Would that be accurate?2
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yeah, '30. And I got

my certificate in ‘31.

JUDGE “MURRAY: Was that ~- You e

graduated from Bepawl?"® DE Fave

JUDGE WAéHOWSKI: What?

JUDGE MURRAY: Judge, was that the
DePadl University Law School? 1

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yes,

JUDGE HENRY: How many people graduated
with yourthat year, do you remember? Were there
10? Were there 100? |

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: I don’t think that

many. No.
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JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: That was the depth of
the depression. ! ﬁ
Wash’t Schultz around then?
Phillie Fleishman? Ira Schultz?
JUDGE wACpréKI: I think he was there,
yeahuﬁ I can’'t rémember definitely. |
|  JUDGE ‘MCELLIGOTT: Yeah, Ira was class. . -
of“’3£'and a half. i |
; JUDGE. WACHOWSKI:  They had Sne"girl in
the class. She became the wife of the divorce
lawyer. | | E'A‘fﬁ A’Sﬁf
JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: Katherine Brafas
JUDGE HENRY: I think this is the point
where Judge McElligott will*keep you honest

because all of the memories.

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: He has a better

‘MEmMory.

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: Wasn’t that Katherine.
BARASA'S
Brasa? Judge Bragzts daughter?
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yeah, yeah. She was
the only girl.
JUDGE HENRY: Judge, did you go to

DePaul too?

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: No, I went to Notre
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_together then?

Dame and Northwestern.
JUDGE HENRY: Okay ., How long have you
known Judge Wachowski?

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: About 50 years. T

‘think right after the war, when he was in the

Torts Division over in the corporation counsel’s

office.

JUDGE HENRY: And the two of you worked

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: No. I was a lawyer,

and he was one of the three older lawyers.

$3,000. Are you trying break the city?
| JUDGE WACHOWSKI: I was the head of the

Torts ‘Division for the City of Chicago -

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: He and Eé%,Burke and
Charlie Hefﬁxf+0RﬁNl

JUDGE HENRY: Let’s go back to when you
graduated. When you graduatedifrom law school,
what was your first job in the legal community?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Well, I worked in the
savings and loan. My dad, who was not a lawyer,
he was -- he was used -- he used to examine the

titles.

And he --
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JUDGE MCELLIGOTT:- %he abstracﬁé.

!JUbGE WACHOWSKXI: Yeah. !

o And he would tell me, "Now, we are
up ﬁoghare. And up to there, it is ailiryght.
Now, ffdm thére on in, you have to read .
everything. And if there is aﬁ&thing thag
doesn’t” coincide, let me know."

| And in the meaﬁtime I had a brb;her
whé;was a lawyer:. He becamé‘a iawyegﬁip about .
1918 or 1919. In fact, he became a lawyer when-
he was 20. He had to wait a year before they
gave him his certificate.
JUDGE MURRAY: That was your brother
Casey? ' e
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: hNO, that was Leon. I
had anotﬁé: brother Casey, he was a lawyer also.
\ JUDGE HENRY: And he became a iawyer
before you did?. | 7

VJUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yes.

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: He was on the T.V.
the other night in the Speck case.

JUDGE WACHOWSKI : Well} that’'s somebody
told me that.

. JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: He was the attorney
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for thé estate of the girls. He was theléttorney
for the parents of the éirls who were killed.

JUDGE MURRA?: He used to play golf with
my dad, Casey. o

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yeah, we used to play
golt allA£he time. '- ’

"JqDGE HENRY: Let’s go back. Where did
you fit into the familf?w |

3&DGE WAGHOWSKlzsrl'was the fif&h.‘*

"JUDGE HENRY: You were the fifth. And
so there were four -—'fivevoider than you --.
There were four older than you?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Four older and four
younger. And my brother the décdtor died just
hereiabout a year a week ago.

JUDGE HENRY: And did he practice
medicine in Chicag&?1

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: He was a radiologist.
In fact, he got a plague from the Radiology
Society of America. And he is listed in the
Who's Whorlist of "Who'’s Who in the Worid." He
ig listed in that book.

JUDGE HENRY: And what’'s his ﬁame? His

name was John?
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JUDGE WACHOWSKI: No, his name was

lTheodore. (

JUDGE HENRY: Theodore. And was he

‘;i-prapticing radiology in Chicage? ;|

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yes. |

JUDGE HENRY:{ And with‘what hospital
was'he affiliated?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Well, he was at the
Illinois Hospital firéf. And .then he. was with

Comp-3 in Aurora. And they moved to Wheaton. In

‘fact’ they bought the home that belonged to owner

of the railroad company in Gary.

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: Albert in Gary?

DGE WACHOWSKI: Yeah. He was tHé& head

~of the railroad éompany, I think.

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: U.S. Steel.

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: U.é.ﬁSteel.

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: ©U.S. Steel, yes,
that’'s it.

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: Elgin, Joliet and
BEastern Railroad they owned.

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: What?

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: EJ&E, they owned, the

Elgin, Joliet and Steel. That was part of U.5.
EGSTER N
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Steel. | 7
JUDGE:WACHOWSKI: I am having a little
trouble with my ears.
JUDGE HENRY: That’s all right. I will

try to keep my voice up and Judge McElligott will

too.

Now, 80 when you graduated from law
gchool, you wén; to work for your dad, sort of ésﬁ
iﬂ—hod3§ﬁcounsel,with the saviﬁés and loan?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yeéh.

JUDGE HENRY: What was your first job in .
the legal community outside of the savings and’
loan?

' JUDGE WACHOWSET: Well, my brother Casey
was a lawyer. He was in the Ashland Building
downtown hefg whére the --

Jﬁng MURRAY: Civic Center?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: -~ where the Civic-
Center is now located. And I did a little
research for him.

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: Well, the block ﬁhere
the new gite of the trust building is, Randolph
and Clark.

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: There were Lwo
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lawyers. We were at the lowest ebb at that time,

because the bank in this!stbry, there wasg other
developments where my dad ugsed to take money from
people for safekeeping. , And he never gave them
any receipt. They Wouid-jﬁs£ give him the money,
and he would”take it ovér and put it in the |
little safetf deposit vault that he had in his
office. ) t |

'And then my sister, oldest si;ter
got acquainted and later in there where she was
courting a guy that worked‘for a.bank. And she
wasg telliﬁg him about this. And he would say,
"Oh, my CGod. That’s impossible. Because if
these people give him this money atd they say
they ga&é more, what are you going to do? = How
are you going to" -- Heﬁsays, "You have got to
give them a receipt.”

So they started what they called
the private bank. And.they had that -- he had
that private bank forx, oh, I don’'t know, maybe
eight, maybe ten years. And then they passed the

law that prohibited private banks.

So in 1922, I think it was, my

‘pbrother Leon, who was a lawyer at . that time, he
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got two or three people to buy stock in the bank.

So'they had a bank. And that went through until

1932. It lasted.

S Although there was clients that

would give us money until the skies fell or they

themselves were in deep trouble, and that’s when

“the bank folded.

At that junéture, we were in that

= - game nemghborhood trying to get businesgs. So

I -- We talked about getting a job in publlc
offiées“‘And so we went to. see Sonnenschein,-who
wasésecretary to Mayor Cermak. And then we got
Mayor Cermak aﬁd another face --
| JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: That was ‘31 now,
right, 1931? '
- JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yeah, about ’31.
JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: Bill“William Hale
Thompson?
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yeah.
But there was another feature about
that. The ~-- My brother, the doctor, married a
girl, she was a doctor also. They met at
Tllinois University. And her father was

acquainted with the owner of one of the Bohemian
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newspapers. - And she interceded, or'they did, for
the Bohemian néwspaper to talk to Cermak. )
JUDGE HENRY: In your behalf?

JUDGE .WACHOWSKI: On my behalf.
' TRy

1

So in T¥e%, I went in and began to-

wor& in the state’s attorney’s'office1
| JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: Thomas JL.Courtney;*
?hoﬁas J. Courtnéyt -
| JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Oh, yeah. - o
JUDGE HENRY: "How many people were‘there
in the state’s attorhey?s office in Cobk County
When you started working there as attorneys?'
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Well, I know for the
country towns, there weréwao.
JUDGE HENRY: Now, when }ou say country

towns, you mean any city outside of the City of

~Chicago?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yeah, yeah. I
remember very straight. It went for the north,
Wént for the south, and one for the west.

Later on there were two because,
well, the guy from the west was released from his
employment for some reason or another. I don't

know.
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assisted, Wilbert Crowley?

JUDGE MURRAY: Who was the person that’

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT:

JUDGE WACHOWSKI :

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT:

me along. -

WIEMEYER
No, Grover N=GT=EE.

Yesg, Grover Nemar. .
4 -

‘See, that’s why I like yoﬁ;,,’

That’s why he brings

JUDGE HENRY: I am glad he did.

And-wasugpg state’'s attorney a

republican or a democrat?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI:
JUDGE MCELLIGOTT:

JUDGE MURRAY: He

staﬁé’s attorney. Swanson.

JUDGE WACHOWSKI:

He was, a democrat.
That was Roosevelt.
beat Swanson forxr

e

That’s right.

JUDGE MURRAY: Swanson was a republican.

JUDGE WACHOWSKI:

was in there too, you know.

JUDGE HENRY: Was

Right. Right. Crow&

it for a four-year

term for state’s attorney in 193272

in 19337

JUDGE WACHOWSKI:

Yeah.

JUDGE HENRY: So you went to work there

JUDGE WACHOWSKT :

Well, I was employed,
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not any term of time, I gdess.

. JUDGE HENRY:

I understand. ,

But the term of office of the

state’s attorney that you went to wbrk for was

for four yéars?

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: 32 to '36.

. JUDGE BARTH:

question?

Sonnenschein.. Could you tell us who Sonnenschein

was?

Judge, can I ask a

You said that you went to

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: ~ Yeah. He was ‘a --

JUDGE MURRAY:

man. Wasn‘t he?™

He was a ward committee

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: He was the ward

committee --

After Cermak had another job, he

became the alderman of the 22nd Ward.

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: And he was ward

committee man too.

JUDGE BARTH:

What was hig full name?

What was his first name?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Henry.

JUDGE BARTH:

And was he from vyour
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neigﬁborhood?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI:

Yeg, he lived there.

JUDGE BARTH: Was yours an ethnic

neighborhood?

1

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Well, he was about two

blocks'%rom mine.

JUDGE BARTH: Well, the name

Sonnenschein doesn’t sound

Cermak. -

JUDGE MURRAY: He. was Bohemian.

like Wachowski.or

- JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Well, let’s say, he

wag Jewisgh-Bohemian:

JUDGE BARTH: Well, was he your sponsor

or was Cermak your sponsor?

spéngors in those days?
JUDGE WACHOWSKI:
JUDGE MCELLIGOTT:

JUDGE WACHOWSKI:

Or did they have

Cermak was mine.
Sure, sure.

Cermak happened to

become my sponsor because of the -- I know the

inter@ession of this Bohemian newspaper.

So I got assigned to state’s

attorney’s office through the country towns.

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT:

- then, Gene?

How much was the pay
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‘And they were paying us in --

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: $200 a month. Yeah.

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: Scrip¥?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: -- scripk.
And I was fortunate. I was renting
a flat for 50Abucksﬁa month and -- owned by a

‘Bohemian family. And he liked that 5 percent

 interest that they were paying on.

JUDGE HENRY: Yoy were giving him the
scrip¥ for the apartment? |

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: I gave him my script,
and he gave me 150.bucks back every month.

JUDGE MURPHY: Did he accept dollar for
dollar,”Judge? - .

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Absolutely. Dollar
for dollar.

-Otherwise guys had to go and sell.
at a 10 percént discount, 20 pe;cent discount
gometimes.

| JUDGE BARTH: Were you not politically
active at this time in your life?
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Was I?
JUDGE BARTH: Politically active.

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: I became politically
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active;r
| gUDGE MCELLIGOTT: You got energiqed;“
JUDGE BARTH: Did you work a preciﬁct?
;JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yes, I did.
“:JﬁbGﬁ MURRAY: He eventually beéémé-f
presidené-of the organization, didn’t you?
.. JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yeah, for one year, I
think, or mhybé two. | | _

JUDGE HENRY: Could“YOU'telI;Egisome.df
the political ﬁork that you did? -

_You' worked a precinct as a precinct
captain, and you were responsible for the vote
totals in your precinct?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yeah. Sure.

JUDGE HENRY: And so that would have
been in 1936, would have been the next
county-&ide election; I guess.

3UDGE MCELLIGOTT: That’s right.

JUDGE HENRY: And presidential election.

Can you tell me your recollection
of your political work at that time? Was it fun
for you to do or --

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Well, it was tedious

work because you were walking from home to home
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maklng yourself known to the people, telling them
younare ready, willing and able to p0581b1y help
them out in certain areas.

In those days, with personal

1
4

propertf tax, generally you could come in~and

make a settlement. And sometimes even the

tvraffic.court cases, you could -- well, reduce

the -}h
. JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: Fine. |
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: -- théﬂbunishmeﬁti
..JUDGE HENRY: Where was the traffic
court loéated? v
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: 1121 South State
Street. e i~
JUDGE MURRAY: The police building. It
was in the police building.

_ JUDGE HENRY: And that would have been
part of the Municipal Court of the CiEy of
Chicago? Or wag there a separate police force?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: That was the Municipal
Court.of Chicago.

@urFNEaHT’
JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: Gﬂﬂtﬁ%ﬂk was the

GUT KYECHT
judge. Geutmick+ the traffic judge. You

remember.
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going on

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: The Judgs.

JUDGE BARTH: Even in those days.

JUDGE STANIEC: ©Not too far.
JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: Yeah, he started
radio.

JUDGE MURRAY: Yeah, but Cermdk died or °

was killed at.a comnvention, what year was that? |

in Florida standing next to Roosevelt. -

standing.

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: No, he was killed down

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: Sitting in a car.

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: No, they were

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: Were they? I thought

they were in a car.

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: They say that this

guy, he was after Roosevelt, apparently; And

they --

that I

that.

JUDGE MURRAY: I was told differently.

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Some of the stories
Whatever. There were a lot of rumors.

JUDGE MURRAY: The mob was after Cermak.

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: But I don’'t accept

JUDGE HENRY: What was the feeling in
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©your community

there --

JUDGE
yeah, he was w
JUDGE

JUDGE

warned Cermak

JUDGE

‘his home. And

;«blbck, waiting

JUDGE"
JUDGE
e JUDGE
Road?
JUDGE
JUDGE
time?
JUDGE
Street.
JUDGE
remember?
JUDGE
- JUDGE

‘when Mayor Cermak was killed? Wag

l

Agide from beihg sad, was there --
WACHOWSKI: I don’t know. Well,
ell-known and,wéilvliked.

HENRY : Wheré'wés his funeral?
MURRAY: Mack told me that he
not‘éo-to that convention.
WACHOWSQE&T He ﬁaé being waked at
there was-a line there around the
to get in. )

HENRY: = And you were at his wake?-
WACHOWSKI: Yés, ves.

HENRY: Did he ‘live on €ermak

WACHOWSKI: NO, no. He lived on --

HENRY: Or 22nd and Street at the
WACHOWSKI: No. He lived on 24th
HENRY : 24th and what, do you

WACHOWSKI: Central Park.

MURPHY: Wasn’t he originally from
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Braidﬁood, Illinois, Judgef
. JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yeah, he was.

' JUDGE MURPHY: He gave my grandfather a
joﬁigs;a policeman when he came up from .
Braiéwooa.h‘ | ‘ 
. .JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Well, I remember him
when he was, traveling around the alleys, I guess,
collectiﬁgvjunk or something.* That’S before he
got to be the alderman ofgﬁhe”ward1&$u -

JUDGE:MCELLIGOTT: That's Why they
called him Push Cart Tony. .

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: = That’s what what’s his
name called him. Was that Thompson?

" JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: Yeah, Thompson-.

JUDGE HENRY: When you say Thompson, you
mean the mayor?

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: Yeah. called him
Push Cért Tony. :

JUDGE HENRY: - And s0 now you are about
34, 35 years old. You are in the state’'s
attorney’s office. You are married. And yoﬁ
have how many children at this tiﬁe?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Well, at that time I

had two children.
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JUDGE HﬁﬁRY: Two c¢hildren?

JUDGE WACprsKI: Yeah..

JUDGE HENRY: And so they are starting
to go to schooi.h_i

And yoﬁ?sEill live in the same

neighbofhood that §6u:grew up in?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yeah. Yes, they went
to Blesséﬁ Sacrament thool. | |

. ”JUDGgﬁgyNRY: And your mom and dad are

still alive at this time?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: fell, my dad died in
1928, just before the crash, which was. a good
thing. My mother died a year later, in 1929.

JUDGE HENRY: Did your other brothers
and sisters remain in that same general area?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Well, my brother

Cagey, he did. Mj brother Will, he would -- he

lived in what was the 24th Ward, north of us. It

was -- Ogden Avenue is the dividing line there.
He was north of Ogden Avenue. But it was almost
the same. It was pretty close.

JUDGE HENRY: Okay. You say the 24th

" Ward, who would have been of the committee man

and the alderman in the 24th_Ward?
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JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Arvey.
JUDGE HENRY: Okay. Now, that’s a very
prominent political name in Chicago?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: ©North of the Ogden

" Avenue predominantly Jewish‘and,soufh

- predominantly Polish and Bohemian?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yeah. Some sprinkling

'qf Irish in the western part of thg ward there. .

Church was actually the church.

JUDGE HENRY: But the city that you grew

- up-in was predominantly defined by ethnic .

enclaves, would that be fair to say?
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yes, I would say so.
=*~JUDGE HENRY: Now, you are 35 years old,
are you still working in the Circuit Court of
Cook County in the country towns, or did you move
into another branch'of the Circuit Court?
| JUDGE WACHOWSKI: No;, £ moved in
downtown.
JUDGE HENRY: And where was the Coock
County state’s attorney’s office located in
downtown Chicagb? |
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: In downtown Chicago?

I think it was --
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.  " JUDGE MURRAY: It was the Coﬁntyv
Building, wasn’'t it? |

JbDGE WACHOWSKI : Yeah,-it was the
County Bu%lding.

'JUDGE HENRY: What did you do in the -

state’s attorney’s office after =-

. Well, first of all, let me bagk up.
- When you weréhworking in the country towns, what

‘were your responsibilities as an assistant

state’'s attornej?}

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: To have hearings on
cases that were beyond the jurisdiction of the
police magistrates or -- There were two.

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: States cases?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Well, because there
were two cdtegories of police magistrates.

' JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: And justices of the

peace.

JUDGE MURRAY: J.P.s?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Judgments for
plaintiffs.

JUDGE MURRAY: Justice of the peace?
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Justice of the piece.

JUDGE HENRY: And were the magistrates
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paid based upon the_émount of the fines
collected? ;

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Huh?

JUDGE HENRY.: -Was the justices of the
peace O pollce maglstrates paid based upon the
amounts of flnes that were collected in the1r
court? - ' -

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: I think that that
deals with the policemen. | o

We had a lot of investigation of
street traffic during those ---

- JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: They collected the

costs then usually.

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yeah, they would --
The costs would go to the county or whatéver
the -- or the city that they were working in. I
think: the fines thougﬁ were split between the
policemen and the judge.

JUDGE HENRY: ©Now, did you prosecute
criminal cases too? Were there any serious
criminal cases that you were involved in?

JUbGE WACHOWSKI: Oh, yeah, a lot of
them. A lot of them,

JUDGE HENRY: Is there any one that
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comes to your mind as a case that might be of --
¢ JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Well, two of them come

to my wmind.

T I worked for two yeaxrs, I worked

before Judge Zﬁﬂ@%k with a lawyer that you all

DESeRt
know.
SHERVIN
JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: Julius: SHes@EEn?
| sperwI A

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Julius Skermem. He
just died. 1In fact, I went to.his services.

‘JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: About six months ago.

: Dz SserT
-~  JUDGE MURRAY: Rudolph Zazork? -~
. DESeRT
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Rudy Za=zowk.

And he says, and I do remember when
the case camé out where the appellate -- the ~

Supreme Court was 6riticizing, the judge and the

attorneys were being too --

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: Facetiogs?
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: -- facetious.
JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: 139 instances of
facetioushess.

And we can’t find.that case in the
Appellate Court, Jim. And the Appellate Court
affirmed and said, "One guy started and the other

guy followed up. And they both participated.
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and they were even in facetiousnessg."
JUDGE MURRAY: Oh, I remember that. |

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: There was one case

tHat I remembgr. There was a case that had to do

with the testim@ny'of a head doctor. He -- what
the hell do you call it? He was esfranged £rom

his wife, Dr: Perch. And she was having the . -

_Apa}ty. They weren’t living together.

B And ‘he came over to the party... And

she says he can’'t come in because he gets too

boisterous and too“argumentative. And they

'flipped back and forth. Finally, she says,

"Well, okay. Okay. You can come in. But if you

get obstreperous, I am §oing to call the police."

And that’s exact1§ what happened.
The doctor, he came in. He got into a fight with
somebody. She called the police. Three
policemen came.
CARNEREDN
So they garsisired -- they garnered
him out to the side. They got him to the door.

They said, "Come on. You are coming with us."

He said, "Wait a minute. It is cold outside. I
got my coat in the bedroom." "Well, go ahead.
Go on and get your coat." So he went.
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And there £hey stood in frontrof
the door ready to go out;;thfee policemen, his
estranged wife, her friend and the maid. They
are all in the*' front. | o

And this guy comes out with his
coat and a gun under the coat and shoots his
wife. And he then turned the gun on himself and
shot himseif. | ‘

JUDGE HENRY ..... -~ Was his wife killed?
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: His wife was killed.

He went to triaLﬁinAthe -- in a
wheel chair  because the bullet lodged next to. --
somewhere next to the spine that there is an
oﬁ%}ation would make him totally - - “ould
paralyze nis legs. ﬁé couldn’t use them at all.

It was a trial of -- We had four
people who were tested - "No, we had three. The
state had three. And the defense had four
psychiatrists who testified.

One said -- One man said that he
was sane at the-time that he did it; and he was
gane at the tiﬁe of the trial. The other one
says he is sane now at the time of the trial, but

he was ingane at the time that he did it.
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house of corrections. And ‘after 8 years, he was
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w=Yeleased.

in‘connegtioh with that.
foot broblem and I happened to go to a Hoctor, he-

was Dr. Perch’s student. I thought that they

There 1s another little anectdote

were going to &iit my leg off.

placé?

JUDGE HENRY: "Where did that trial take

When I had a little

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: At 26th and

California.

arose in one of the areas that was under your

jurisdiction as assistant state’s attorney?

the room.

JUDGE HENRY: At 26th Street.

And you prosecuted it because it

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: No, it was assigned to

No, that 'isn't the way.

It was
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aséigned to the room. In fact, this”guy lived uﬁ.
on.Sheridan Road! ﬁe didn’t live there.

JUDGE HENRY: -And so by this time, you
were ‘at 26th and; California as a criminal
prosecutor? =- _ “
’ JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yeah.

_ JUbGE'HENRY:z How many years did you
spend at 26th and éalifornia?_ |
" JUBeE WACHOWSKI: Well, I éhink‘thatgeﬁ
from about 1935 to 1939 when I left.
I left‘thefe because Courtney ran
for mayor againsté—— |

~JUDGE MURRAY: Kelly, wasn’t it?

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: * Yeah.

JUDGE HENRY: So Courtney was the
republican? -

JUDGE é%RTH: No.

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: No, no.

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: The primary ballot.
This is for mayor.

JUDGE MURRAY: They split the 18th Ward
too. |

JUDGE BARTH: Well, why did you leave

the state’'s attorney’s office?.
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then. --

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: He bet on the wrong

horse. ‘ t

JUDGE BARTH: I know. I want to hear

him say it. ’ R

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Well, I left because

they wanted me -- Courtney wanted me to run for

‘alderman in the 22nd Ward. And knowing the
- tactics that Sgnnéﬁschein was using, I didn’'t

‘want to be the fix undewsthat. I wanted to sleep

nights.

And I know that he was é Very
vigorous individual. And he would go to any
length to win whatever he was aspiring for. And
JUDGE HENRY: BAnd 80 they were asking to
ybu run against him? N

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: &egh.

And I told them about that. I

- says -~ He says, "Oh, gee," that it would be a

good idea. "Well, yeah," he gays, "You can go
over there and go to their meetings and find out
what they are doing and report back to us." I
says, "No, sir. I am not that kind of guy. I

either will be -- If I go, I will be with them."
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He says, "Okay. Okay. We will get you something

i '
- i

else.®

And right at that time there was a

questlon -- .there was a vacancy for the ~%-in the

department. They ‘used to call, these fellows the

judges in the -- Where wag 1it?
 gupee MCELLIGOTT: Tt was Probate.
Probate. f
=7 JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Probate Division.
'Iﬁ other words, ﬁhey had five or
six assieﬁaﬂgrproba:e judgeei"_ |
JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: Yeah, they called
them -- n
. JUDGE MUﬁﬁAY: They were appointed by
the Clerk of the Court. | B
JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: They were deputy
clerks. - ; ‘
JUDGE MURRAY: They were appointed by
the Clerk of the Court?
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: And he says, "Irhave

got_this guaranteed for you."

So I waited, waited, waited. And

in the meantime, I was doing a little practicing.

1 was practicing law. And the practicing law,
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that was mostly in real estate.

And thén one night I got a call,
they were having a party for somebody else who
had beentassigned“tdrtakg that spot that I was
supposed to take. o )

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: It was supposed to be
yours, iight? o | |
ﬁUDGEVWACHOWSKIE Yeah. And the éﬁy

' e . : Di=sf
wag -- You all know him, - Raé@éee.Ko

L APESKO
JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: Thadeus Radeseo-

JUDGE HENRY:i-Wﬁgre was he from?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: He was from the ward
right negt to us. . e ﬂh¢&2ﬁuLL0{S

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: You know Marzulo™s
ward. ‘

: mA/{g_ULLG

JUDGE HENRY: Was he Vito Marzulo] the
committee man at the-time? '

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yeah, very prominent
at that time.

JUDGE MURRAY: He took over Pabdy- Bewexr.

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Well, anyway, I never
heard a man get so excited and use the language

and call a person the names that I heard Sonny

call the Clerk of the Probate court.

-,V/wp;/ BAVEiER
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Who was that, the Clerk of the

Probate Court?

JUDGE MURRAY: He was a republican.
THVHEN

| Tadbewt or somethlng o

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: No,_he was up in the
LYMAN -
48th Ward, Limean?
L LYMAA
JUDGE WACHOWSKI Frank Icimen?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI No, Jewish fellow.

Broderlck or -~

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: You mean before

Lvman Lyt
, Liman, before Frank Liman?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Must have been.

JUDGE HENRY: Maybe it will come to you.

b

Was that an elected position, Clerk of the

...Probate Court?

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: Oh, yeah. So was the
Judge of the Pfobate Court. That wés an entirely
different -- _ |

JUDGE MURRAY: Good spot.

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Did they run as a
team? ‘

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: Nope, separately.

JUDGE HENRY: Was Donald O'Brien, Sr. --

" JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Donald J. O’'Brien, Sr.
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"~ JUDGE HENRY: Do you know him, Judge

[
i

O'Brien?
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: No.
"JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: No, he never was:. .

JUDGE BARTH: Getting back, Judge,

~Sonnenschein called'the c¢lerk and ripped him for

not givihg:yqﬁ the job. But what happened? =

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: They said that they
had aﬁiﬁnderstahdiné, a deal made, and that he

wag double crossed:_ Oh, he called him a whole

bunch of names.”

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: Yeah, that was in the
Lispn

Probate court. Yeah[,that wag Frank “Ldwmzn then?
JUDGE WACHOﬁE%I: No, no. |
JUQGE BARTH: Well,rﬁhat happened to
you? | N
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Well, what happened to
me? I later was given the job that paid I think
$100 more a month.

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: In the corporation

.coungel’s office?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: 1In the corporation

counsel’s office.

JUDGE HENRY: And what year would that
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have been, 19407
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: It was about 42
maybe. |
,JUDQE MURRA?E.;Whonwas the corporatién
counsel that;appointed.ydu? |
JUDGE WACHOWSKi: Hodes .
 JUDGE MURRAY: 5th Ward.
-JUDGE HENRY: S5th Ward? |
JUDGE WACHOWSKT : Sb:wés he in private' A
practice with Jacob Arvey‘while he was also the
cotporation counsel? T

JUDGE MURRAY: No. No, that was later.

_The firm did later.

o

~ JUDGE HENRY: So in 1940 or ‘42, you

went to work in the corpgration counsel’s office,
and the corporation counsel was Arvey -- I am
gorry -- Hodes.
JUDGE STANIEC: Barney Hodes.
JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: The firm was formerly
MC./IV'E‘I(’!‘/// '
Melnearny, Arvey and Epstein.

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: And then it became --

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: And then it became

fovZs NANTYN BAN B

Arvey, Epstein, and Merm=tuvane

JUDGE HENRY:  And what did you do then

66



10

11

12
i3
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

" were entered?

“in the corporation counsel’s office?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Well, then I was

trying personal injury cases, defending the city

tWHErQ people filed suits_for trip@iﬂg,onvthe

sideWalk'mostly or automgbiles -- ppbiic

automobile accidents.

JUDGE HENRY: Were theréléhyzpréblems

that the city had with paying on judgments that

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yes, they did. There
was a long list of waiting two, sometimed three
or fouxr years before then. You had to get on a

list.. :

And_t@en there was somé scandal
there. And that’s how I got assigne§: I got'to_
be ﬁhe presiding judge of the -- oh, wait a -
minute. I got to be the chief of the Tdrts
Division. |

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: (Clean it up. Clean
és a whistle Wachowski.

. JUDGE MURRAY: You used to lay down a
couple of bucks getting your name up on the list.

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: (Laughing.) Yeah, I

was there from 1950 to ‘54 as the chief of the --
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JUDGE MURRAY} You were chief of the.
Tarts Section?? : | ' {
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yeah. | |
'JUDGE HENRY: So from 1942 to 1950 you: .
were in the corporatlon counsel'’s offlce - .
JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: That's how I met him,
in the corpﬁrétipn’counsel's offlce.
) JUDGE HENRY: -- handling_péfsonal
injﬁfy lffigatidn?’: : ' ) o
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Well; I was handling
personal 1n3ury lltlgatlon
And then after that, I was asked
by, oh, the alderman'fromrthe 37th Ward,

o

democratic --
BN E

JUDGE7MCELLIGOTT: Tom Kesnz-

JUDGE EARTH: No.

JUDGE .WACHOWSKI: You knew him well,
because he was one of your group.

JUDGE MURRAY: Paul Corcoran?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Who?

JUDGE MURRAY: Paul Corcoran.

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Corcoran, no.

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: What ward, Gene?

JUDGE MURPHY: 37th he said.
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JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: Oh, McGloon.
JUDGE MURRAY: No; not McGloon. He went

to congress.

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: 'He served in the city

council. His son --
| JUDGE MURRAY: Iriéh name?
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: His son is a lawyer.
JUDGE QCELLIGOTT: Not George?

JUDGE WACHOWEKT: Well, it will come

" tonight.

JUDGE HENRY- Well it may come before
that. We hd%e got the reposmtory of knowledge
herg. You will thlnk of it.

. So during those vears from 42 to
'50 you were in the corporatlon counsel’s offlce
doing personal injury llt;gatlon.' And from ‘50
to ‘54, ybu were the head of that department?

ﬁUDGE WACHOWSKI: No, I wasn’'t trying
personal injury cases all the while. I fofget
what year it was, but I was called --

L.ancaster, Bill Lancaster.

 KEANE!S

JUDGE MURRAY: Yeah, he was Tom ¥Kesmwtg-
partner.

" JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yeah. And he was in

69



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19

20

21

22

23

24

charge .of the subway damage case. So I was in

|
that department.

JUDGE HENRY:

I see. When you say

o : . )
subway damage, do you mean when the construction

of the Subway at Dearborn Street?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Right, when it was

supposed to have caved in.

So --  And -then we were also
gé&ui:ing“some land for the airport.’ And we were
condemning some cases of property for the -- what

was called the expressway, now it is the

Eisenhower. And it was in that department that I

Fen

was when they'asked me whether I would like to

come over to the other department.

JUDGE MURPHY:

Did you work with Judge

Righeimer on that project by any chance?

- JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yeah. He was a great

guy in condemnation.

JUDGE HENRY:

So that was a pretty

sophisticated practice within the corporation

counsel’s office?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yeah.

JUDGE HENRY:

during those years?

Did you try a lot of cases
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JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yeah, I tried a pretty

i
good number of cases.

JUDGE HENRY: Condemnation cases?

JUDGE WA@HOWSKI: No, the subwa} damage. -

JUDGE HENRY: The precursor to the flood

cases?
. JUDGE WACHOWSKI: What?

JUDGE HENRY: ' The precursor to ghe flood
cases wﬁere €ﬁ€ city had been sued. s

JUDGE WACHOWSKi:x_I was down there
looking in those yéérsf% That statement was made,
"Wh;t woﬁld happenzif one of-these pibés broke
and it fell Off?f

JUDGE HENQY: The é{éy would flood.

JUDGE WAC?QWSKI: It was aéﬁeed that
there would be a_ lot of damage.
| JUDGE HENRY: And so you walked around
in the tunnels that are underneath the Loop?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yeah,

JUDGE HENRY: And who did you go down
there with? _

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: I think -- I went‘
down there, the other judée; with the other

lawyer who also became a judge from South

71



10

11

12
.13
14
15
16
i7
18
i8

20

21

22

23

24

. Chicago. Three martinis at Henry C’'s

JUDGE HENRY: Was it somebody that you
Worked with in the corporatlon counsel’s office?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI Yeah

JUDGE HENRY: And you,were down there
geeing if there was any damage to those tunnels?
or why were yoﬁrdéwn‘in thééeftﬁﬁnéls?

' JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Just to see how, what

-éhey did. And we did watéh them.

They had the'big'plates;_and they

&guld press it agaihét the ground.“%And there is
a little hole, ﬁwo little holes in the shield.
And the ground would come into the holes, and
they would take it off and put it in a llztle
train that they were bulldlng‘ghe railroad rlghff
behind the -- this plate.

JUDéE HENRY: I see.

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: And put the mud in
there and wheel it away.

JUDGE HENRY: So then --

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: And then, of course,
they couldn’'t avoid this, and sd they would punch

a lot of grout in along -~ along this circle as

they went along.
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Just as soon as they would get rid

of that stuff, they would pump more, more stone

mixture in there. But they --

;-."‘HA lot of these people still said
that they wefe hurt building the -- couldnﬂt!

cloge the doors, or the windows wouldn’t fit

:-becauéé:;-ZYOﬁ know, the whole town and everybody

knows this, the deal on mud. And most of the -
puildings we:é.built on a plate.f So when the mud
would move, -the ﬁlates Would'cause the --

JUDGE HENRY: Now, were you still living

‘in the 22nd Ward during these years?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: (No audible response.)
JUDGE HENRY: This would have been
du:ing the early 1930s? )
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: I moved --
. No, no. I moved over to Carl.

SANDBIR &
andbEFy in about 1960. Yeah.

JUDGE HENRY: So but your kids were

raised in the same neighborhood that you grew up

in?
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yeah. They were away
at school so much you could hardly say they were

raised in the neighborhood.
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JUDGE HENRY: Where did they go to
school? You said tha% your son had died who went
to West Point. But where did your other two
children éo to school at?.

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Where did the hell did
they go to school? Blank.

JUDGE HENRY: That’'s all right. It will
come back }o vou. | ' i

| JUDGE ﬁﬁELLIGoTT£, Did you say Lane
Tech? | | 7 

JUDGE WACHowsKi:**I said, "blahk.v

JUDGE HENRY: Did they go to pubiic high
school or a catholic h;gh school?

F_ JUDGE WACHOWSKI: My son, he went to
Quigley. ) )

JUDGE HENRY: Quigley at the time?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Down on -- down on- --

JUDGE HENRY: From down on.Rush Street?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: And then he went to
St. Louis University afterwards. 2And it looked
like we were -- He was working in the hospital
and out there to make a little extra money. And

I kind of figured that we were going to have a

doctor in the family, but it didn’t turn out.
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He met this young lady that he is

{ .
'now married to. *

JUDGE HENRY: Now, you had a daughter

3

" ;tgoh right? , S

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yeah.;;'}

JUDGE HENRY: .Where did she go to high
sghddl, out in the,néighborhoddvﬁhere?

JUDGE WAC&QWS%I: Doris. Oh; Marguette
University. : <

JUDGE HENRY: She went to Marquette?

| JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yeah. |
JUDGE HENRY: And what did she get her

degree in, if you remember?

P

JﬁbGE WACHOWSKI: Oh, somé.general
JUDGE HENRY: General?
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Nothing.

- JUDGE HENRY: Okay. So your children

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Her daughter is now
graduéting from school in Pennsylvania. In fact,
this coming weekend. |

JUDGE MURPHY: You going over by any
c¢hance?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: ©No, no, no. My wife
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is walking around with a crutch.

JUDGE HENRY: So your children are now

‘raisgsed.

Were you working politically --

During the yegré ﬁhether you were
in the corporatiﬁn counsel;s office, were'you
still active pOlitically'iﬁ the 22nd Ward?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: A little bit. Not too

much. ' gy

- JUDGE HENRY: Did you ever run for any

" public office? We will get to the judgeship

later. But o

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: No.

JUDGE HENRY: But at one timéﬁyou were
offered thehopportunity to return as alderman:
but you declined? B

JUDGE WACHOWSKI:\ Yes.

JUDGE HENRY: And so your activities
could be described as a worker within the
democratic organization iﬁ the 730s, '40g and
into the '50s87?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yes, I think so.

JUDGE HENRY: How did it come about that

you became a judge? How did that happen, and

76



10
11
12
13
14
15

16

17

i8
19
20
21
22
23

24

when did it happen, and how did it come about?

| JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Well, it came about
because, as every lawyer, I guess, you éspire to
go higher in the practice. And, of couuse, I
will éaylthis at this time, some of the”;aﬁyérs
that were in before me was a£ $500 deps; $1,000
cagses. Théy are now wealthy enoggh to contribute
a half million to the schgol'br Eo other
$¥ganizationsg. ' - S

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: Art Hggggigave 3

million. - | - S

' JUDGE WACHOWSKI: The Universityiof
Chicago. _
. JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: And I remember he was
hustliqg subrogation casgs for $25.

-' JUDGE HENRY: And so you were ig-the
corporation counsel’s office and you decided
that --.

Well, did somebody come to you and

say, "Gene, we would like to put you up and have

" you run for judge"?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Well, I aspired to
that position fof a long time, from 1948 -- no,

from 1938.

i
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JUDGE HENRY: = When you went to.work for
the state’s attornéY's office, it was always your
goal to hopefully some day become a judge? Did
you alﬁays haventhétmiq_the back of your head?

JUDGE WAgﬁOﬁSKI: Yes.

JUDGE HENRY: And what yéar didrfou
be come a;judge?'jfr )

~ JUDGE WACHOWSKI: 1934.

 JUDGE HENRY: ~1954. : s

Now just for historical purposes,
were yoﬂ“elected'to‘thafrposition or appointed?
- JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Elected. |
JUDGE HENRY: And what position did you

o

run for? Was it oné of the di@isions of the
coﬁrt or -- N )

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Municipal Court.

JUDGE MURRAY: Municipal Court.

JUDGE HENRY: And so you ran for the
Municipal Court. And-that would have been
hearing many of the types of cases that you might
have tried as a corporation counsel?

JUDGE WACHOWSRI: Well, no. I -- 1In

fact, my first assignments were right in the

police courts.
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'and Halsted?

And the arrangement they had, they
had five different clerks'thatfappeared'in one

day. We started up on the north side and then

- came down and ~-- I remember Ehdse[d@ys - -

- pesPlaines Street. ~And then the last one was on

Crawford Avenue.
JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: Philmoré.
JUDGE MURRiy: There is one out south,
out on Racine? | e
N JUDGE WACHOWSKI;' Yeah. |
‘JUDGE HENRY: 61st and Rac£he.
JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: 61st, yeah. Town
hail; - ,
AJ JUDGE WACHOWSKI : Town hall, yeah, that
was another oné. . |
JUDGE HENRY{ Now, ﬁpat ig at Addison
JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: Yeah.
JUDGE BARTH: Did you ride a circuit?
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Monroe Street. ‘quroe
and -- |
JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: And Racine.
JUDGE BARTH: Did you ride a circuit,

Judge?
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JUDQE WACHOWSKI: Yeah.

! You started. out in the morning‘aﬁd

then when we get down to the place on Flournoy 6r

the -- - i‘ﬂ,-“ i t o
_;vbGE MCELLIGOTT: Harrison and

Flournoy.

'JUDGE WACHOWSKI: All of the cages were

. settled by the ¢lerks.

JUDGE BARTH: You would do several

courts in one day, is that how it -was done?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yeah, that’s right. -7

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: He used to cover
circuits, he said.

JUDGE MURRAY: Have gun, will cravel.

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: tEast Chicago, Monroe
Street. | ‘.".

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: All of those. Yeah,
they were all covered in one day.

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: And then there was
1ith and State too. fou had 1lth and State.

JUDGE HENRY : Sb what was your route and
how did you get around to do all that in one day?
Did you drive?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: ©Oh, yeah, I drove.
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VJUDGE HENRY: And at thig time you were
still living on the wést‘side because you didn’t
move to Sandberg Village until the early '60s.

‘ AndAsb_YOudwpﬁld drive in the
morning. And what tiﬁe'ﬁould'your first cou#t
call be? ‘ u

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: 'It was 9:00 o’clock.

) For years and yearé, they ugedgto
summon all the p&ople in at.9:00 o‘clock. It was = .-
much later when I was the presiding judge of the
First District. I changed-that to have the

police book the cases in different sections; like

- 9:30, 11:00 o’‘clock, 1:00 o’clock, 2:30.

I earned the bittefmfeelings of

many of the judges, the clerks and the pblicemen.

In fact, we tried it several times. It all broke

up because the police would not book their

clients for the right time. They were bookiﬁg
theﬁ now for 9:00 o'clock. |

| So we had a meeting in my chambers
with a fellow who later attained -- later became
the chief of police.

JUDGE HENRY: DeLeonardi?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Who? -
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JUDGE HENRY: DeLeonardi.
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yeah, that’s him.

He came in, and we had all of the

. ‘courts’ policemen in my chamberéyi And I told
.them what our policy was and how Wé'were having

trouble.

And hé said, "Listen, you guys.
You ‘are going to folloﬁlthé rules that we teil
you'ébouE today.' And if you‘ﬁbn't}'you_aré going
out to éouth Chicago on the beat." So -
7 JUDGE HENRY: So many years later when
the presiding judge#correctéd the ﬁroblem --

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yeah, we finally got

that straiéhtened‘outf o

Of céurse, the clerkg were mad
because they had to stay there uptil 2:30 until
that call was heérd then. , -

Then, wouldn’t you know it,

ordinarily, they would, no matter how busy a day

it was, I sat there myself at 9:00 o’clock in the

morning, from 9:30 when we started to right
through the noon hour, having something, a bite
to eat on the bench. That’s how -- And at 5:00

o’clock, we are still there and these people that
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were brought in, you know.

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: 9:00 o’clock in thé
morning? '

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: 9:00 in the morning.

They were there, still there waiting to have

their,cases called.

ﬁﬁbbE‘MURRAY: Were you still active in
the organization when you were jgdgé?‘
| ~JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Well, very vaguwely.

For a very short timé. Then, of c¢course, you

kndwa, law Was'paéged preventing judges from .

having any political --
JUDGE MURRAY: And who was mayor when
you were made judge? -
'JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Who was the mayor?
_JUPGE.MURRAY: Yaah.
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Well, Daley was
elected the next year, in ’'55.
X EWWELLY 4
: was the mayor.
kgt ELel
JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: Lawerii? v
oy |
JUDGE WACHOWSKI : Ggﬁe%%f'was Mayor, '47
to '55. Canelli wag there.

JUDGE MURRAY: Mortimer wag corporation

counsel, right?
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JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Huh?
{
JUDGE MURRAY: Mortimer was corporation
counsel, wasn’t he, when you were elected judge?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: - Well, yeah, for --

No, not when I.was electédQ: Later on he became

the corporation counsel.

JUDGE HENRY: So you ran for judge as a .

democrat?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yes.

JUDGE HENRY: You ran for judge in the

Municipal Court of the Cir@ﬁif%Court of Cook

County?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yes.

-

JUDGE HENRY: Did you have any

opposition in the democratic primary when you

ran?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI:- Oh, vyes.

JUDGE HENRY: Was that in a municipal
election, or was it in a general election in
November?

JUﬁGE WACHOWSKI : T think it was in a
municipal election.

JUDGE HENRY: Okay. Would it have been

a -- was a partisan election then, democrats and
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republicans? Was there a primary opponent that
you{had in 1954, do you remember? S

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: I don’ﬁ think there
wéré:any“candidates for -- on the répﬁblicgn
ticﬁet. ‘ |

JUDGE HENRY: Did you have an 0pponeﬁt
lﬁvﬁhe-d;mocfatic primarj? o

" JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yeah.

 JUDGE HENRY: And the V&E

ing was
city-wide?
. “JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Right. -

. JUDGE HENRY: 'ﬁid you have thé support
of the regula;ﬂdemocratic brganizatioh'when you
ran? * . )

JUDGE WACHOWQKI: Yeah. 5
JUDGE HENRY: So -- And w@s that --
Usuall&, then you would -have been
elected with that support?
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yeah, I was elected.
JUDGE HENRY: So then how many years did
youhtrével the circuit in the First Municipal
District?
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Well, iet’s see. Let

me think. (Brief pause.) Even he can’t help me

]
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outlying police court?

on this one.
JUDGE MéELLIGOTTE I wasn’'t there,
Charilie.
 JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Let’s see. How many
years, you say?jfThe guestion is how many years

was I traveling the circuit?

JUDGE HENRY: Yeah. That’s okay, Judge.

Tell me, when you fin;sheﬂ with

that assigﬁﬁéht, where did you move. to next -

- the court system?

Youlwefg'still a Municipal Court
judge, and so you were elected to the Municipal

Court. What was your next assignment after the

JUDGE W%QHOWSKI: .Well, fvran for
Municipal Court judge in ‘60. And I was --
.~ JUDGE HENRY: Did you have to run again
in 19607
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yeah. Six-year terms.
JUDGE HENRY: Okay .- _
 JUDGE WACHOWSKI: And I was elected. 1In
fact, I think IAhad the highést recommendation
from the Chicago Bar. And I think in between

Feldman and me, we were running 1, 2 in the vote.
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And then in 1962, I ran for Circuit
Court judge. I was elected Circuit Court judge.

JUDGE HENRY: Was that considered a

"~ higher level court at the ‘time?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Oh,.yes. Yeah. The
salary was more.
JUDGE HENRY: Was it county-wide?

JUDGE: WACHOWSKI: We were getting about

’ﬁizgsoo. I think they were gettingﬁié,ooo around

tﬁat time.

' JUDGE HENRY: And the Ci¥cuit Court
would have beéﬁ a county~wideﬂcourt?,
| " JUDGE WACHOWSKI: The circuit -- Yeah,.

JUDGE HENRY: What type of cases were

heard in -- ;ou call it -- i;_was the Circuit k
Court? | : ) |

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: In the Circuit Court.

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: Were you circuit or
supérior?

| JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Circuit Court.

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: You ran for the
circuit, yeah. '

JUDGE HENRY: What type of cases were

heard in the Circuit Court?
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JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Well, all the criminal
cages, T sat in the cfiminal courts. '

|
JUDGE HENRY: At 26th and California?
- ;‘JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yeah. N
' JUDGE MURRAY: That was the cougt'bf
general jurisdiction? | _

o JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yeah. And, of course,
the persqnél injury cases in o% the Civil
Dfﬁi%ion, Yéah.- . ' 3 e

JUDGExBENRY: And you heard both.
"7 Yow long were you at 26th and -
California hearing,criminai:matters?- 1
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: I don’t recall.
‘JUDGE HEﬁﬁY: rDo_youAhave any -- J
Were there ény gsignificant cases
that come to mind that you presided over dﬁring
those years? _
JUDCGE WACHOWSKI: I guess there are, but
I can’t recall any.
| JUDGE HENRY: Well, that’s okay.
Was the death penalty an issue wﬁen
vou were a judge out at 26th and California
during those years?

The death penalty, I believe, was
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in effect in the State of Illinois at that time.
Were there many controversies surrounding the
enactment of the death penalty among the judges
at 26th and Callforn1a°“_ .

. JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Well, I prosecuted a
cage with a fellow who was found gullty and
sentenced to death

I wags askKed to attend the,

execution. And I did go to the County Building. .-

and there were a lot of repbrters. I don’t think
there were any T.V. guys “around yet at that time,
but reporters and the people who were the family
of the guy who was kllled
And I am wonder;ng “What the hell

am I doing here? Wnet do I want to see this
for?" And so going there, I figured I would stay
in there 15 minutes-and go back home.

JUDGE HENRY: That execution would have
occurred at the county jail?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: It did, yeah.

JUDGE BARTH: Was that the electric
chair that was used? |

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yeah.

JUDGE BARTH: How long after the
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sentence was imposed was the execution carried

!

out in those days, Judge?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: I don’t think it was

" -over, what, six months, seven ‘months maybe.

JUDGE BARTH:, It is quite a bit

different from today.

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yeah.
JUDGE BARTH: Was there an ‘automatic
appeal to the Supreme Court?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Well, I guess having

':thé public defender, and nobody looked at them.

JUDGE MUﬁRAY: It was no appeal to the

 .Federal Court of Opinion?

o

JUDGE BARTH: There was no federdi court

. process in those days.

JUDGE MURRAY: There was no
post-cOnvictioﬁ, yeah. |

JUDGE BARTH: There would have been an
appeal to the Supreme Court of Illinois after the
state --

JUDGE MURRAX: You are correct. There

wag a direct appeal on criminal cases in the

‘Supreme Court of Illinois.

JUDGE HENRY: Was that a bench trial or
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a jury trial,'Judge?
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: A jury trial.
JUDGE HENRY: And then once the jury

found the person gullty of murder, was it the

jury’s determ1nat1on that the person should be:
~executed, or was that your decision alone?
' JUDGE WACHOWSKI: No, this thing that I

‘am tailking about, I prosecuted.

* JUDGE HENRY: Oh, you proeecutéﬂ?

JUDGE ‘WACHOWSKI: Yes.

JUDGE HENRY: Just as an asrde, you justf”

mentioned tﬁat you didn’t'knowulf the televrslon
cameras were around during these particular
years. | o
JUDGE WACHOWSKI Yééh )
JUDGE HENRY: I don’t want to belabor
this point,- because we have run out of time. . And
I juet want to finish the whole picture today and

get it all down.

But what is your'view briefly on

the issue of whether television cameras should be

allowed in the courtroom?
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: My opinion is that

they should not be.

91



i0

117

12

13
14

15

i6
17
ig
19
20
21
22
23

24

JUDGE HENRY: Okay. We won’'t belabor

{

that point then. N
 peRTE
Bill HEaxD just wrote a long
article supborting that: . And as we sit here
today, we are within six or eight months aftey

the 0.J. Simpson case, many feelings now right

are that if anybody was leaning towards having .

‘televigions in the courtroom, the 0.J. Simpson

case establishes Ehat it prbbabiy is a better
idea that they not be. |
" But you qualﬁgg,rand I just wanted

to establish that. | 7

JUDGE WACHOWSKI; It always has been.

- JUDGE HENRY: Sb you saighthat you were

elected.to the Circuit_gpurt in 19627

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yes. And then, of
coursé, in 1964, when the new -- that was the
"blue ballot" -- no, this is the constitution.

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: Yeah, the
constitution. The judicial article. .

JUDGE ﬁACHOWSKI: Everybody who was a
Municipal Court-judge or Circﬁit Court judge, so
I blasted away 10 to 15 grand for nothing.

JUDGE HENRY: 1In your election?
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JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yeah.

JUDGE HE&RY; If you had waited, you

‘would have been elevated to the same position.

JUDGE - WACHOWSKI: Yes.

JUDGE HENRﬁ: and so that was in 19647

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Because my .term was
not ﬁp until 1§ég. i |

JUDGE HENRY: " I see.

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: I was re-elected -

Municipai Court judge-forAsix years in-'60.
JUDGE HENRY:‘ﬁi seé. So, T got vyou.
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yeah. ;
JUDGE HENRY: And then you became --

Well, you were Circuit Court”judge in 1964 then.

Rather than having to stand for

election again, you would just be subject to

retention in 1970 and every six yeérs thereafter,

is that correct?
| JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yeah.

JUDGE HENRY: And iﬁ 1964, the court
gystem becomes unified, and there is no longer
these separate elected judges?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: That’s right.

JUDGE HENRY: What was your assignment

93



10
11
i2
13
14
15
16
i7
18
i9
20
21
22
23

24

_then in 1964? Where were you sitting, and what

types of cases were you heariné? Were you still
atl26th and California, or had you moved from
there? - R |

JUDGE WACHOWSKI : In;19é4.

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: You became. head of

the First Municipal District.

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Well, I became head of

the First Municipal Distfﬁ%ﬁ iﬁ 1900 and --
| JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: Wasn’'t it '642
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: '64.  °
JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: Yeah.
. JUDGE HENRY: So the Municipal Court --
JUDGEEMURRAY: Well ——7 o
JUDGE HENﬁY: I am SOTTY, Judge.

In 1964, this building that we are
sitting in téday} the Daley Center, had not
opened yet.

So the Municipal Court, were they
still located over in City Hall?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yeah, that’s where the
Municipal Courts the were located.
And, belie?e me, I remember some

plistering summer heat, that and dust and noise
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from the railroad.
%JUDGE MURRAY: Yeah, but they cloéed all
éummer then, didn’t they?
" ' JUDGE WACHOWSKI: wWhat? R
_JUDGE MURRAY: Courts closed all summer.
JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: Well, jury trials.
" JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Well, when we
backlogged, we stayed open;,m J
e That’s the time when Ju&ﬁé,Sullivan
ran down to the éraih and told them -- the guys
to pull tﬁé gﬁ} over, stop the noise. ;' -
JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: Over at 26th and Cal.
JUDGE HENRY: Well, what's that story,
Judage? | N ’ |
QUDGE WACHOWSKI: ﬁhy don’t you tell it?
JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: No, I don't know it.
You tell it. : .
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: He sent his bailiffs
over there to tell them to'stop operating the
traiﬁ there because it was interfering, with the
noises.
And so they did go down there.
They toid the guy. They came back, and the noise

has continued on. So he ran down there and said,

95



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17
18
19
20
21
22

23

24

"Come on. We are going to place this wman under
arrest." Pulled the %uy off of the train.
JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: Who was that,
Sullivan?l I
| JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yeah.
JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: Which Sullivan?‘
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: ' Well, the tough
Sullivan.  What'the hell, I forget his'firstj

name.

JUDGE HENRY: And that was at 26th and -

i

california?
. JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yeah.

JUDGE HENRY: And so you were the

presiding judge of the First Municipal District.

Was your courtroom located in the City Hall at
that time?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: No. No, this was
already here. This building was in existence.

JUDGE HENRY: Wheﬁ you became head of
the Firét Municipal District, this buiiding was
already open?

' JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yeah.
JUDGE HENRY: I see. So you were the

first presiding judge of the First Municipal
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“ 'py the name of --

Digtrict to occupy the office that is in this
?building today on the thirteenth floor?
' JUDGE WACHOWSKI: No. There was a judge

D S et
JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: Temeksid?
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: @%&S&%&EI.;wﬁfﬁfﬁSﬁ#‘
JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: No, Ggg@ﬂigkj%kﬁwﬁksﬁ/

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Gesmalski was the head
of the First Municipal éourt?fbut I don’t think
that he was in the -- the fellow that was ~—
I JUDGE MURPHY: Augustine 36&5? 

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: Oh, I see.

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Augustine Bowe was the

e

judge. Heldied walking down Lake Shore Drive.
7?héy almost sent ﬁim to the morgue,.

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT; You had your
-courtroom up on the eleventh floor?
| JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Well, that’s when I
used to hear cases in the City Hall.

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: Yeah.

JUDGE HENRY: And what did that
courtroom look like? I mean, was it a fancy
courtroom?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Well --
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‘JUDGE HENRY: 1In City.Hall?

'JUbGE'WACHOWSKI: A little junky room,
that’s all it was. | _

JUDGE HENRY: I see. ‘ EE

Now, the courtrooms that were 1n

the County Building were somewhat ornate and a

11tt1e more regal, as I recall,
j JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Well, not much
differéﬁt, not much différent. The? havé~been
kept up a little better. A

JUDGE HENRY: Well, the cOunty Court had -
a little bitgmore stature. I am talklng about.
before tﬁe 1964 judicial article. The
county-wide judge was a;re prestlgous and had aa
larger courtroom and more money But you had a
courtroom %n CltY Hall -- | )

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yéah.

JUDGE HENRY: -~ to hear municipal
caseg? |

| JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yeah.

JUDGE HENRY: Okay. What was the first
assignment that you had when the Daley Center
opened? What was it that you were doing in this

building when you first moved into this building?
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JUDGE

WACHOWSKI: I think I was still

: ! |
hearing personal injury cases.

p

JUDGE HENRY: Personal injury cases?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: .Yes.

JUDGE HENRY: So then what year -- |

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: When this was opened?

JUDGE HENRY: Yes.

JUDG& WACHOWSKI: Yeah, I was hearing
cases. ; Al

JUDGE HENRY: - Okay. Noﬁ, when -you took
over -- o

Well, you séid it was '64. Lef’s

say '64, ‘65, whatever it was, you became

pfesiding judge of the Municipal Division of then

the Circuit Court -- of wbat then had become the

Circuit Court of Cook County?

JUDGE

JUDGE

WACHOWSKI:. Yes.

HENRY: Okay. Well, here you are

gitting in charge-of the whole show. You had

started out as

an assistant state’s attorney

prosecuting case. You had been a judge running

around all the
JUDGE

JUDGE

various branch courts.
WACHOWSKI : Yeah.

HENRY: You had heard the various
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municipal cases involving torts and personal
iniUry. '

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yes.

. _ JUDGE HENRY: You were noi the presiding

judge. What. was the first thing thqt you wanted

to do gince it was your decision now to decide

" how the First Municipal District should operate,

or how"did you feel about that?

" JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Well®™" T felt that

there was épme improvements needed. And I .think

onefdf the -- I think one of my greatest -
accﬁmplishments was thérestablishment:of the Pro
Se Court with just the fellow sitting there,
Judgé Jives.iu. 7 .

JUDGE MURRAQE Judge Teton. B

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT:. He were‘ag his
funeral. o

| JUDGE WACHOWSKI: That was ijust

yesterday, right? '

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: Yen.

JUDGE HEKRY: Did you appoint Judge.
Teton as the head of the Pro Se Court?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: No, no, no.

JUDGE HENRY: He came years latex?
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JUDGE WACHOWSKI:

there.

Wé had several pretty gocd guys in

He came much later.

!

JUDGE HENRY;- Do you remember who yéuf{ -

designated to start up that Pro Se Cou;t?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Well, I designated my

administrative assisfant.

I sat there for a couple of days

myself. Bt that was not possible, to operate-

the court and spend so-much time on the bench.

Being called off all the time with this problem

or that problem[ that is not the prbper thing.

So I had wmy administrative

=2

there originally.

brings me back to Dr. Perch.

about Dr. Perch and how -- what a wonderful guy

assistant, Francis Po}ﬁton, he was sgsitting out

And something you said here that

"I told you all

he was and they let him out after 8 years.

It must have been four or five

years after that. I picked up the Tribune one

day and there is headline there, "Chicago doctor
kills wife and kills self."

the headline.

It is Los Angeles.

So I looked down at

So guickly I
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—in

am looking down. There it is, "Dr. Perch,
JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: %He liked to kill
ﬁives, huh7 | 7
JUDGE MURPHY sémé-gpye
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Same guy. Went to
california, married apparently, killed his wife
and killedrhimse;ﬁu o o

~"Now; the psychiatfists, who was

"right? They were both@§fong. Bécause I think

that he was nuts when he did it. Hé:was nuts
when he was on trlal _- -

JUDGE HENRY: And he was nuts years
later when he did it again.

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yeah.

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: Incidentally, it was
WaRp

Gene
Court -- we used to call it +~ - there were 36

justices. And he was one of three who 'would when

. you would say "a jury trial" -- you would mention

jury trial, and the judée would get a look of
fear in his eyes. "No, no, I don’t hear jury
triais.“ |

You and Wendell Green and Sam

ARSI
Hat=@xa are the only three to take on a jury

wEgew who was sitting in the Mummde MUC/4FEL
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Geruse.

trial.

5
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: No, I think Jimmy

'~ JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: No, he was Still.
assisﬁéﬁt corporation counsel. |
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: This was 50 years ago.
 JUDGE BARTH: Judge, along tﬁaé line,
901ng back to your trying- jury cases, just'ﬁb

glve an 1dea of how long your career “is, when. you

- first started trying jury cases, is it true that_

women weren t permitted on jurles°
JUDGE WACHOWSKI:‘ That's right.
JUDGE BARTH: Would you tell us about
that? | |
JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: '39,
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yeah, that was in ’'39.
That-was:when I left the state’s
attorney’s office. That was just about the time
that the women were permitted to sit on the
juries.
JUDGE BARTH: Was that by state law?
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yeah.
And I just left at that time, so0 I

didn’t have any'experience with them at that
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time. But a fellow that was my partner, he
i

gstayed on in the state's attorney’s office.

SHERWIN
JUDGE - MCELLIGOTT: That was Sherman.

S perwin < .
Slresman? o

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: No. No. It was a

feliow who later on wag, I think, in the public

defender’s office orzsoﬁeplace. And they used to

sit "in the ﬁraffic court dozing off all the time.
It was one of%iﬂe fineéﬁ*léwyers I ever knéwi
JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: Buckley?
 JupcE WACHQWSﬁf} What?
JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: Buckley.
'JUDGE MURRAY: Gettgg
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Wﬂb?
JUDGE MURRAY: Getty.
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: No, no. Gee, what is
Ehis guy’'s name? 7

celrf
JUDGE MURRAY: &arressi. Judge

EETTI % | -
‘Garret i

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: No. But he got

involved with some lady juror. They began to

-wink at each other. T think he dated her. And

when his wife found out about it, she sued for

divorce and all this. And this killed the guy
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~you about -- that was another --

becauge this here was one of the finest lawyers

that I ever knew.

And here he wound up -- I couldn’t

- believe when I was sitting in the traffic court.

And I spent some time there, byfthe way. I

remember having a jury trial there until 4:00 in

_the morning. - 4:00 in the morning.

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: Remember what Skinny
McDonald said? He séid, ffﬁé:é;ggéfgégériminal
law is never the same Since'they put wémen on the
iy v B
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Yeah. Well, I told

Y9u talked about aﬁother ca;;,

angther case I prosecuted. I hqg'two of the
Cranes and one --

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: George Crane? _

,JUDGEVWACHOWSKI: Yeah. And another
guy.

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: Went down in the
plane crash? 7

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: No, he wasn’t on the

plane crash.

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: No, George Crane went
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- goes bad.

down in“that_plane crash, criminal lawyer, went
; _

down in that plane crash in Cincinnati? !

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: I didn’t think that

that waéaéranew I thought it was somebodynélse .

© went downwinithat_plane crash. This fellowLWas a

prosecutor.

Well, tough thing when the“édﬁputer

JUDGE;HEmﬁY: Your compuﬁer i&ﬁdoing
fine. Mine islnoérso sharp.

JQﬁGﬁ;ﬁACHOWSKI: But this case, the two
doctors were -- I was the prasecutor. And i
never take c¢redit fq;_this-guilty.

The doctor who testified for the

‘state murdered these two lawyerS'in'the Cross

examination.
- Crane and thé guy that weﬁt down on
the plane, he was the other guy.

Well, anyway,‘they -

And this was one of the -- All the
abortion cases that I think are on the record,
they were not guilty of murder by abbrtion. But
they were guilty of abortion, permitting the act

of abortion.
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.....

And apparently what they did ﬁas
wrong. And this girl %ent to this doctor. And
when she described how badly‘they had treated
her, the jﬁry didn‘f'ﬁeed anymore.

Well, aﬁyﬁéy, they said -- one of
these doctors saild, ﬁIf we are convigted andlif I
have to go to_jail;ﬁiwwiilgcommit suicide.“' So
they were donvicted. :

| They took an appeal. The Appeliate ?ﬁf

Court.sustained the convictioﬁ, The guy |
committed suicide. T

The other guy, the other doctor, it

_was a year later, they gave him his license back

to prqptice. Can you iﬁagine tﬁgé?

And here is a-guy --

JUDGE HENRY: That’'s an amazing story.

Now, we are just getting:down
towards the end., I told you that we would stop
at 5:30, and I have got about 25 after.

I am just going to ask you Oner
other guestion. We have basically gone -- - We
have covered a lot of ground, and most of it has
been very general. But I think that that’s what

I thought it would be best to do.
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When you left as the presiding
judge of the First Municipal Dlstrlct you

then -- we won't get 1nto the details of belng

R recalled and being here or whatever - but you
:then served in the County DlVlSlon for a number

of years And I will tell you, people'always

tell me that they miss you here
| JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Oh.
JUDGE HENRY : And I just want you to
know, ifithere'is aﬁything in those years,rjust
aé-wéﬁ%re winding down,'énd if anybpdy“glse
gitting here has a duestion that théy want to put
to, the judge that we can get on the record,

please feel free.

But in your years inrphe County

. D1V1Slon, Wthh is kind of a unigue place because

6f all the various and sundry types of cases that
are heard here, is there anything that during
those years that you ﬁhink would be noteworthyr
for you to reflect on of to comment on, vou know,
just in general? And that’s up to you.

I don’t-have a specific queStion
about.those years because we are running out of

the time right now. But is there anything that
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you would like to make a comment on during that

period of your judicial career?

JUDGE WACHOWSKTI:

1nterest1ng cases, 1nclud1ng the adoptlon and b

They were all

which is proven by the Baby Rlchard .case.

JUDGE MURRAY :
Richard case, dldn £ you?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI:

the guy is not a fit father.

JUDGE MURRAY

7st111 one of the guys from

JUDGE WACHOWSKI:

Brown -- That’s the guy’s

" 4£7? If it wasn’'t for him,

dead.
JUDGE MCELLIGOTT:
CREEVE _
Greerd- Greencand Brown.
JUDGE MURRAY:. He
father?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI:
they were all interesting.
could with them.

JUDGE HENRY o

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT:

Don't say that.

‘name,

Now, you handled the Baby

Yep
He isg
the Tribune.
Well{rif it wasn’'t for
I think, isn’'t

the thing would be
You mean GreenG)pr
just got sued by the

The election cases,

But I did the best I

This guestion was --

Gene wasg the first

. .And I still say -
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judge retired, recalled in 19792.

JUDGE HENRY: Juége, there was a
guestion that was put to a number of practicing
lawyers a number of years ago And it was a
survey done by..the IllanlS ‘State Bar
Association. And the guestion was "1if you had it
to do over again, woui&jgouﬂgoito law school?“

And the percentage of people that

were happy pract1c1ng law went up the further you
were into your career and the larger the law firm

you were with and the fact.of’ﬁﬁether or not you

were a partner in that f£irm?

P

But even most lawyers under that

scenario, only about half of those people said

‘that they would go to law school again. The

percentage among judges was extraordlnarlly high.

The questlon asked of judges,
"Would yeu go to law school again?" '"Yes." A
job satisfaction rating of close to 75 percent,
which is extraordinary, I think.

If you had it to do over again, are
you ha@py that you went into the practice of law,
number one? And two, are you happy with your

career in public service as a judge?
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JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Definitely happy.
Definitely happy . !

| You know, I always think that I
dbnit%know what motivated}me to -- TYeumkqew, I

weSJbumping around every place. And all of a

sudden here, they tell me that I have got go to

nlght school for seven. years

I thlnk—thls persistence of mine in

lﬂ3901ng and 901n9 and going, hav1ng ‘the lunch down

PIpeEY - FEHEELS
at Tcughaend_ﬁﬂﬁze¢e on the first floor. You had

a qu%ck‘iunch before you run up there. Sit’
around. h |
JUDGE MCELLIGOTT Was that ?eugh“aad~v
EHLERS 7
Eddie"=8 oY Plxley and E&%ee%ﬁe
JUDGE HENRY: Well, he is cheeking every
cite here. He is not letting you get away with
anything. 7 |
JUDGE WACHOWSKI: There are places.
JUDGE HENRY: Does anybody else have any
other questions? It is 5:29. |

JUDGE BARTH: I have one comment to

make. I know that this was not scheduled to be a

‘tribute toO Judge Wachowski, but you did remind

me, Judge, when you were talking about the
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adoption cases you handled in this division and -
the election matéers as well, I think that it is
truly gignificant that Judge Wachowskl -~-

JUDGE" WACHOWSKI Election cases too.

JUDGE BARTH: Well, that'’s jus; what I
was 901ng to say too. |

Judge Wachowski at the end .0of a

long career as a 1awyer, as a judgeh“then as an
admlnlstrator ‘in the court system, after: o
retlrement came to a d1v1510n that he had never
served in. before and dlstlngulshed himgelf in
areas of law that he had not practlced

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: They chased me to the
%ew books. . o

JUDGE BARTH: The area of adoption,

election, taxation, real estate taxation, a very

' complex area of law, both in the collection side

and the assessment-side,.and I know from the
practitioners here and his colleagues on the
bench, he was extremely highly regerded, and any
any type of case could be transferred to him.

So I think that we are truly
honored to have had the tutelage and the exposure

to a great legal mind and a very kind and
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knowledgeable and compassionate jurist who is
able to impart the knowledge%that he would then

ingquire to the rest of us who had the privilege

_of serving with him. B

So I, just wanted to say that it has

been a source of great admiration for me to

"realize. And the older Iiéei, thé more I come Lo
“ respect your ability at that stage in your life,

‘fJudée, to assimilate thé&8e new areas of law.

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Thank you.

JUDGE BARTH: You are'weiaéme. _

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: The only thing that I
say the difference between being in public office

all tﬁe years that I wasg in, I-had a bréther that

was in the law business, two brothers in the law

business. And as I say, when I ~- when we

decided that I should try to go for public office
it'would be much better because the banks having
cloged and doing business from the same
neighborhood would be -- it would help them as
well as me too.

But I think I would have advised
anybody who wants to establish some financial

gecurity, that it would be better for them to go
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out and practice slow and catch one of those
millionidollar cases and get oﬁewthird as%a fee,
you know.
' JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: You know, wheh we

startedféut, there weren’t those cases, qeﬁé.

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Well, it was
suggested 'maybe twice a lmttle more back. ‘But I
llke the securlty of getting that check every”
month without -- you never knew when“that’
million-dollar éase was coming in. But that'’'s
what -- ;i don’t know whether this will chéhgéﬂmy
mind any, I think not. - _ 1

_JUDGE-HENBY: You can still get that
million-dollar caéé? A 7 J

.. JUDGE WACHOWSKI:. Well, they are{;here,
and even more now.

- JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: We had the first big
airplane case in ’‘48. You know what it settied.
for? $148;QOO.

JUDGE BARTH: Big money

ff/PaLiW(i MEO
JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: Ti e—-B.—OLes

She went down in that plane crash. We settled
the case when we found out that she was pregnant

by her ex-husband who snuck back one night and
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planted his seed.. _

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Let me say that as
judge and a public servant was justice well
performea by the ﬁedple we have here. Here is
one of them, Murrayf‘McElligott.. |

JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: I will give you a
quick'ohe on Genéf'fIq'1946, 1 came back ffqm the

army... It was the first personal injuryﬂthat I

nad, a slip and“fall. I didn’t know anything e

about it.

I got an order to appear before the
commifﬁee. The committee‘was Gene and éérly Horn
who became the successor and-Lisle Berch. And I

o

went over there in the room, and I sat back in

‘the corner, and I watched all these caées going.

I didn’t give the clerk a few
dollars or anything.. I just sat back and found
k-1

out what was going on. And so finally I am down

to the last one. And I suggested or sonmebody

suggested $1,000. I remember Gene said, "$1,000?_

What are you doing, trying break the city?" Gene
said, "Well, let’s give Mack 1250, we kept him

waiting here all afterncon." I said, "That’s all

right. I made $33-56~for sitting there for an

L eH B3
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hpur, hour-and-a-half.?
JUDGE STANIEC: Somethihg else that I

pave to add to it, it absolutely has to be on the

- record. He is the gfeatest storyteller. And

when we had Horny Collins for a:tiﬁe -- he was a
judge here too -- when you get them together, it
ﬁodld be hours upon‘hours upéﬂ ﬁours*of jokes aﬁd
exchange between the %wo of them. .It was just a
hilarious evening wheﬁéver‘fﬁu had the two of

them.ﬁpgether. Even if he was alone there. He

;woﬁid have an endless routine of joke telling.
One led to something else. And they are all

tholesome_jokes}

o

" JUDGE MCELLIGOTT: He made football?

JUDGE WACHOWSKI: Well, thank you. I am

picking them up off of the -- like the Legion Mag

and the Readers’ Digest‘now. And the last one I

got £rom the Legion’s Magazine is the lawyer

examining the client who was a witness to a

shooting. "You say you saw her shoot him?" And
he said, "Yep." "Was the gun close?" "Yep."
tHow ~-- "Was there any powder on them?" "Yep."

nfhy do you think she shot him?"

* JUDGE BARTH: On that note --
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~ JUDGE

JUDGE

JUDGE

interview wi;h

_interview withv

HENRY: On that high note?

WACHOWSKI: Off the record. |

| (Whereupon, a discussion was
had off the record at this
time.) ;

HENRY: Just that'ﬁompletes the

Judge Wachowski, the first

the Supreme Court éystem as- it

appli%%fto Cook County. And everybody~§hat is

'you talk about

court system.

here I think benefited a great deal just to hear

the life that you have had in the -

City of Chlcago, your personal llfe, and also the

And I just think that it is

g

fascinating, and I appreciate it very much.

JUDGE
JUDGE

you?
JUDGE

not?

Anything else fellows?

BARTH: That will be all.

HENRY: Can ‘I get a picture of
WACHOWSKI: Well, I suppose. Why

{(No further record was

taken at this time.)

* * %
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS
COUNTY DEPARTMENT - COUNTY DIVISION

|

I, Lillie L. ﬁavié,-an Official Court
Reporter for the Cirquit_?ourt of Cook County,
County Depa;tment/Couﬁ;y:pi;ision, do hereby
certify tha£ I repdrteé in shorthand the
proceedings had at the hearing in ﬁhe
above—enEitiéd cause; thét,l'thereafter caused
the foregoiﬁg to bﬁ;xranscribed’iﬁto tyéewritiﬁg, ;ﬁ)
whiéh I hereby certify to be. a true and accurate

transcript of the proceedings.

/a H// -‘ i /- V,/
offlcial/@buyt RepoEter
Lidenge No. 084-003065

Dated this 25th day
of June, 1986.
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